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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AN

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei
Mr. Wang Yi

Mr. Gong Jian Bo
Mr. Xia Lie Bo

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xue Li

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung

Mr. Li Jia Miao

Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia

SUPERVISORS
Mrs. Bi Dong Mei

Mrs. Chen Xiao Yun
Mr. Long Jing

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered office and principal place of business
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

312 Shi Chang Road
Weihai

Shandong Province
PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

801, Chinachem Century Tower
178 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Company secretary

Mrs. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis, AC/S
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CORPORATE PROFILE
ALV

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL
POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the research and development,
production and sale of single-use medical devices. The
Group has a wide range of products, which includes: i)
consumables (infusion sets, syringes, medical needles, blood
bags, pre-filled syringes, blood sampling products, and
other consumables); ii) orthopedic materials and iii) blood
purification consumables and equipment. The Company is
recognised as an industrialization base to commercialise
products developed by the State High-tech Research
and Development (863) Program, the State High-tech
Enterprise and the State Technology Center. The Group's
main production facilities are situated in Weihai, Shandong
Province.

The Group is incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.
The Group has an extensive sales network comprising 25
sales offices, 38 customer liaison centers and 170 municipal
representative offices. As at the date of this report, the
Group has an total customer base of 5,159 (including 3,090
hospitals, 414 blood stations, 611 other medical units and
1,044 distributors).

The Group produces a wide range of products in following
major categories, namely:—

I. Single use medical consumables and materials
(including infusion (transfusion) sets, syringes, blood
bags and blood component segregators consumable,
blood sampling products, pre-filled syringes for
pre-pack medication and medical needles which
mainly include intravenous needles, syringe needles,
intravenous catheter needles, blood sampling needles
and irregular needles;

Il.  Orthopedic materials and instruments, including trauma
products of steel plates and screws, spinal implants and
artificial joints; and

lll. Blood purification consumables and equipment,
including puncture needles, extracorporeal blood
circuit for blood purification sets, dialyzers and related
consumables.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited,
I would like to present the audited consolidated results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the
“Year"). The Group’s results in 2013 have continued to
grow steadily, with prominent effect from the optimization
adjustment to product mix, which laid a foundation for our
future development.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded a turnover of RMB4,613,310,000, representing
an increase of 25.1% over the previous financial year.
Net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
was approximately RMB387,984,000 (2012 : net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB996,486,000), representing a decrease of approximately
61.1% as compared with the previous year. Net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company excluding
extraordinary items (which include the effect on disposal
of operation of Biosensors International Group, Ltd.
("BIG") and exchange differences) was approximately
RMB936,941,000 (2012: net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately RMB852,172,000
excluding the effect of operation of BIG and exchange
differences), representing an increase of approximately 9.9%
over the previous year.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Financial Summary MEBRE
2013 2012 Growth
—E-=§ —T-—F ® R
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTFRE ARKETT %
Turnover L 4,613,310 3,689,115 25.1
Gross profit EH 2,726,866 2,112,420 29.1
Net profit attributable to the owners of AR EHEH A BG4 F
the Company 387,984 996,486 (61.1)
Net profit attributable to the owners of ~ Rt HKIEE AN RIEH
the Company excluding extraordinary N LR
items 936,941 852,172 9.9

The extraordinary items included profit attributable
from investment in BIG and loss on disposal amounting
to RMB497,421,000 (2012: RMB130,775,000), loss on
exchange differences amounting to RMB46,050,000 (2012:
gain of RMB29,719,000) and the effect on dissolution of the
distribution joint venture with Medtronic Inc. (“Medtronic”)
amounting to RMB5,486,000 (2012: RMB16,180,000).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREHRES

During the Year, the business growth of the Group was in
line with our expectation. The new sales organisation for
single use consumables has been established following the
restructuring. The Group's gross profit margin increased to
59.1% from 57.3% in the previous year was mainly due
to the resumption of the independent sales operation by
Weigao's orthopaedic business. The disposal of all of its
equity interest in BIG by the Group had an one-off impact
on its net profit.

During the Year, the performance of the Group in four
business segments was as follows:

(1)

the turnover for medical consumables of the Group
reached RMB3,546,077,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013, representing an increase of 15.7%
when compared with the previous year;

the turnover of orthopaedic business for the Year
was approximately RMB505,947,000, representing an
increase of 126.9% when compared with the previous
year and representing a growth of 34% compared with
the sales of Weigao branded orthopaedic products by
the Distribution Joint Venture in 2012;

the turnover of haemodialysis consumables
and equipment for the Year was approximately
RMB561,286,000, representing an increase of 39.5%
when compared with the previous year. Profit from
Weigao Nikkiso (Weihai) Dialysis Equipment Co.,
Ltd. (“Weigao Nikkiso”), which is 51% held by
the Group, attributable to the Group amounted to
approximately RMB6,822,000 (2012: attributable loss of
RMB4,401,000); and

The Group disposed all of its equity interest in BIG for
a consideration of US$312,283,973 on 21 November
2013, from which an accounting loss of approximately
RMB497,421,000 was recorded. The loss represented
the net effect of profit attributable from BIG before the
disposal amounting to approximately RMB67,811,000
and loss on disposal of BIG amounting to approximately
RMB565,232,000. The equity investment in BIG was
from the sale of the Group’s 50% interest in Shandong
JW Medical Products Co., Ltd. to BIG in exchange
for equity interest in BIG in 2011. At the time, an
accounting gain of approximately RMB2,568,534,000
was recorded for the financial year ended 31 December
2011.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 30 April 2014 to Friday, 30 May 2014
(both days inclusive), for the purpose of determining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending the Annual
General Meeting, shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company's H share registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29 April 2014.

In order to qualify for attending the annual
general meeting:-

Latest time to lodge in the transfer
instrument accompanied by the
share certificates

4:30 p.m., Tuesday,
29 April 2014

Closure of register of members of
the Company for attendance of
the annual general meeting

Wednesday, 30 April
2014 to Friday,
30 May 2014

Latest time to lodge in the reply slip  4:30 p.m., Friday,

9 May 2014

Date of annual general meeting Friday, 30 May 2014
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREHRES

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
RMBO0.031 per share (inclusive of tax). The total amount
of final dividends to be distributed shall be approximately
RMB138,768,000, of which dividends paid to non-resident
corporate shareholders will be subject to the corporate
tax applicable on the PRC sourced income pursuant to the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and the Regulations on the
Implementation of the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law that
became effective on 1 January 2008 and the applicable
tax rate is 10%. The listed issuer will be responsible for
withholding the relevant amount of tax from the dividend
payment and the dividends to be received by the non-
resident corporate shareholders will be net of withholding
tax. The proposal to declare and pay the final dividend will
be submitted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to
be held on Friday, 30 May 2014. Final dividend for non-listed
shares will be distributed and paid in Renminbi whereas
dividend for H shares will be declared in Renminbi and paid
in Hong Kong dollars.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Saturday, 7 June 2014 to Wednesday, 11 June 2014 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2013, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
entitlement of final dividend, shareholders should ensure
that all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6 June 2014.
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In order to qualify to entitle the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013:-

Latest time to lodge in the transfer ~ 4:30 p.m., Friday, 6

instrument accompanied by the June 2014
share certificates
Closure of register of members of Saturday, 7

June 2014 to
Wednesday, 11
June 2014

the Company for the entitlement
of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013

Wednesday, 11 June
2014

Record date for entitlement of
final dividend

Despatch date of final dividend Friday, 11 July 2014

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Group’s various achievements as mentioned above
are attributable to the continued supports of the staff,
customers and business partners and shareholders. | would
like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere
thanks for all your contributions!

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xue Li

Chairman
26 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDNT

INTERNATIONAL COLLABORATION

The Group is dedicated to becoming a leading medical
device manufacturer in Asia.

On 21 November 2013, the Company and CB Medical
Holdings Limited reached an agreement to dispose of all of
its 21.7% equity interest in Bionsensors International Group,
Ltd (“BIG"), a listed company in Singapore at a consideration
of US$312,283,973. The consideration represented a
premium of 11.7% over the closing price on 21 November
2013. After the disposal, Weigao ceased to hold any interest
in BIG. This transaction recorded an one-off accounting book
loss of about RMB497,421,000.

During the Year, Weigao Nikkiso (Weihai) Dialysis Equipment
Co., Ltd, (“Weigao Nikkiso”) a joint venture company
established with Nikkiso Co., Ltd., commenced the
production of dialysis machine, and is distributed in the PRC
market by Weigao Blood Purification Co. Ltd. ("Weigao BP"),
a 70% owned subsidiary of the Company. The collaboration
leverages on the complementary strengths of the two
partners. It has further strengthened the Group’s competitive
advantage position and also lays a solid foundation for the
business expansion of the Group in the blood purification
market in China. Profit from Weigao Nikkiso attributable
to the Group for the twelve months ended 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately RMB6,822,000 (2012:
attributable loss of approximately RMB4,401,000).

In 2012, the Group established a joint venture company
named Weigao Terumo (Weihai) Medical Products Co., Ltd
("Weigao Terumo”) engaging in peritoneal dialysis business
with Terumo Corporation and Terumo (China) Holding Co.
Ltd. Weigao Terumo plans to engage in the production
and sales of peritoneal dialysis related devices in the PRC.
Weigao BP holds 50% equity interests in Weigao Terumo.
The preliminary work for production and sale in 2013 was
underway smoothly. Loss from Weigao Terumo attributable
to the Group for the twelve months ended 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately RMB4,002,000 (2012: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPTIMIZATION ADJUSTMENTS TO PRODUCT
MIX

The Group strived to adjust its product mix. During the Year,
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited
("Weigao Orthopaedic”) resumed the sales operation
following the dissolution of the Distribution Joint Venture.
The proportion of sales from products with high gross profit
had further increased and the gross profit margin for the
year improved to 59.1% from 57.3% last year.

1. Consumables: the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB3,546,077,000, representing an
increase of 15.7% when compared with the previous
year.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, turnover for
needle products was approximately RMB722,304,000,
representing an increase of 18.0% when compared with
the previous year. During the Year, the Group continued
the strategy adopted in 2012 in having dedicated
professional team in selling needle products and to
enhance the competitive position of the Group in the
direct sale channels to secure a larger market share. The
Directors believe that needle products will become one
of the important areas for the future development of
the Company.

During the Year, the market development of the
Group's specialized infusion sets with dosage control
device and the infusion sets made of proprietary non-
PVC based material maintained a growth momentum.
Turnover of infusion sets of the Group amounted to
RMB1,254,165,000, representing an increase of 11.1%
over last year. The Directors believe that specialized
infusion sets with dosage control device and non-
PVC based infusion sets have enormous development
potential in the PRC. The Group will continue to
consolidate its core competitiveness in this sector.

During the Year, the glass tube production line for
pre-filled syringes was operating smoothly. The Group
has established a favourable position in the market.
Turnover of pre-filled syringes for the Year amounted
to approximately RMB209,575,000, representing an
increase of 32.2% when compared with last year. The
Company invested approximately RMB60,000,000 to
purchase a new production line for pre-filled syringes
with an additional capacity of 36,000,000 pieces and
production had commenced in the third quarter of
2013.

B B A A L AT

EMERELRAE

ARBBIREREBAE -FR - IUK
BeEEEERA ﬂ(mﬁﬁﬂnﬁ
HEFNNDHEEERREEER BAES
%‘ﬂ’&ﬁj%_LLTTm%%% BEERETEE
FIEREELENE—FRA  NFEF
R EFHST.3%IRAF59.1%

1. BEEVM AEEEHREREKEE
HzEa AR #3,546,077,0007T &
EFIERI57% °

HE-_Z—=F+_A=+—H1t
FE - AEENHTEEMRELEE
B4 AR #722,304,0007T  REF
RIS 0% - FRN AEELEET
2012F HIEM I B R EEE HE X
HERE UWEARXEETEHEE
BEHHEED EREZHNTSN
H-EEZME HEXRBKARS
HEERMNEZEGZ —-

iﬂq $E@¢T5E/J|L£@_T FJ'J?TQ%%
ERZEBH A JEPVCM B BT R 2 8 R
ENMETERETHERRES &
BAEEHRAENEGHERER
AR #1,254,165,0007T 8 % F 1%
RMM1% ZEFHE FRREE

70 64 R 2% B2 JEPVC H R 22 E ML AE P
BmZEEERERTH ~&E
BEERZELZETNZOFEFEE

FR BRAFTHSZ2EEBELE
EHFBERT AXEEERMS
FEREZ A fﬁﬂq 87
TEHEEMBGEETLNAA
K #209,575,0007C @ 8 % F 1%
’322% - ARFRIT/EHDARE
60 000,0007T £ & 78 70 =0 )% 57

%ﬁ&t%ﬁ ER-E—=F%
“EEEAMNKE AIFHEER

36,000,000 ©

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IWEREmEEER D TEMKMH AR A

1



12

I\/IANA@EI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDNT

OPTIMIZATION ADJUSTMENTS TO PRODUCT
MIX (continued)

2. The blood purification business of Weigao BP achieved
rapid growth. During the Year, Weigao BP recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB561,286,000,
representing an increase of 39.5% when compared
with last year. The second dialyser production line
purchased by the Group with an investment amount of
approximately RMB100 million was put into operation
and expanded its production capacity. The third and
the fourth production lines are expected to put into
operation in the second half of 2014 to further expand
its production capacity to meet market demand. The
Directors expect that the blood purification business
will be an important direction and segment for future
development of the Group.

After obtaining the government approval in 2012,
Weigao BP has actively expanded its operation of
haemodialysis centres, and continuously improved the
management system and training of medical personnel
for haemodialysis centres.

3. After the dissolution of the Distribution Joint Venture,
Weigao Orthopaedic resumed its sales operation in
2013, developed the independent sales and distribution
channels with success. Operating revenue for the
year from orthopaedic operation was approximately
RMB505,947,000, representing an increase of 126.9%
over last year and 34% increase as compared with
sales of Weigao branded orthopaedic products by the
Distribution Joint Venture in 2012.

During the Year, as a result of product mix adjustment,
the percentage of turnover from high value-added
products (products with gross profit margins of over
60%) to total turnover increased to 52.2% (2012:
45.8%).

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2013, product
registration certificates for 54 new products were obtained.
The research and development for 36 products were
completed for which applications for product registration
certificates are underway. The Group obtained 92 new
patents and 53 new patents are under application.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (continued)

The strategy of placing strong emphasis on research and
development has enhanced the competitiveness and laid a
foundation for the Company to fully leverage on its customer
resources and provided the Group with new profit growth
drivers.

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2013, the Group
had over 300 product registration certificates and over 300
patents, of which 37 were patents on invention.

In view of the need for the strategic adjustments to product
mix, the Group continued to increase the investment in the
research and development in existing products series and
new medical devices, so as to further improve its product
series and expand product range. The Group continued to
maintain its leading position in research and development
capability in China. For the twelve months ended 31
December 2013, total research and development expenses
amounted to approximately RMB208,921,000 (2012:
approximately RMB170,587,000), representing 4.5% (2012:
4.6%) of revenue of the Group.

PRODUCTION

During the Year, The Group completed the relocation of
main production facilities (including those workshops for
syringes, special infusion sets and blood transfusion sets) and
those ancillary facilities like warehouse, inspection center
and office building from the original production plant to
new industrial zone, and these facilities had been put into
operation one after another during the Year.

The Group continued to implement strategy on product mix
adjustment by increasing the proportion of high value-added
products while decreasing the production of low value-
added products with low rate of returns. This enhanced the
contribution rate for each type of products and raised the
overall profitability of the Company.
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I\/IANA@EI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDNT

SALES AND MARKETING

The Group adhered to implementing the strategy in
integrating its sales channels. During the Year, the Group
restructured its marketing system and achieved an initial
success. At the same time, the Group achieved its expected
sales revenue with increased in the number of sales staff,
investment and support in market channels.

During the Year, the Group strengthened as its sales
management system, integrated and restructured
distributors. The Group focused on its marketing resources
on customer development and maintained the relationship
with hospitals from the grade-A of tier two or above ( =
ML %8BT ) . For the twelve months ended 31 December
2013, the Group newly added 127 hospitals while other
medical institutes and distributors increased by 23 and 49
respectively. As at the date of this report, the Group has
a total customer base of 5,159 (including 3,090 hospitals,
414 blood stations, 611 other medical units and 1,044
distributors).

Sales comparison by geographical regions for the year when
compared with last year is set out as follows:
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TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS EXRAMESS
Increase/
(Decrease) over
corresponding
2013 2012 period
2= —ET-C-F B [F) £33 R %

RMB’000 RMB’000
IN:1 & ARET T %
Eastern and Central EREER 1,994,133 1,271,083 56.9
Northern E3ld 970,134 799,911 213
Northeast Sl 525,798 453,210 16.0
Southern g 411,231 322,303 276
Southwest piE| 370,088 311,331 18.9
Northwest (it 143,788 116,839 23.1
Overseas g} 198,138 198,066 0.0
Subtotal et 4,613,310 3,472,743 32.8
Distribution Joint Venture DHEEERT - 216,372 -
Total A 4,613,310 3,689,115 25.1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

The integration of sales channels has strengthened the
Group's market penetration and influence over the direct
sales to high-end customers. It enhanced sales contribution
per customer and average sales per customer were increased
by approximately 20.2% when compared with last year. It
continued to drive up the product penetration to high-end
customers and is an important way to generate revenue
growth of the Group.

Adjustment in product mix was another important factor
in enhancing the results for the Year. During the Year,
the Group focused on sales and marketing of high value-
added products such as needle products, pre-filled syringes
and high valued added infusion sets. It has increased the
proportion of sales generated from high value-added
products. Comparison of sales revenue of principal products
with that in 2012 is as follows:

For the twelve months
ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLt-f@A
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For the three months
ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—-HLZM{EA

Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)
over over
corresponding corresponding
Product category ERER 2013 2012 period 2013 2012 period
—2-Z§ C"IT--F BQRASKEY ZB-ZF —T--F BREEHLEY

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARET: %  AR®TR ARET %
Infusion sets Bz 1,254,165 1,129,038 1.1 317,514 256,920 236
Needles BRHEA 722,304 612,085 18.0 180,313 123,544 46.0
Syringes IR 595,022 530,805 12.1 149,719 121,970 28
Blood bags MEEH 233,760 201,673 159 66,054 55,181 197
Pre-filled syringes BRAEE 209,575 158,586 322 50,924 26,590 915
Blood sampling products RIMER 84,546 71,316 18.6 22,807 17,056 337
Wound Management BIEFiER 77,537 64,525 202 20,200 16,816 20.1
PVC granules PVCHI#} 74,421 67,455 103 19,436 18,621 44
Other consumables Hip ¥ 294,741 228,153 29.2 95,102 53,669 772
Subtotal for single-use consumables— %1 & B FE# /)&t 3,546,077 3,063,636 15.7 922,069 690,367 336
Orthopaedic products a ERER 505,947 223,015 126.9 120,119 9,611 1,149.8
Blood purification consumables [ % £ 41 450,410 288,571 56.1 131,678 91,172 44.4
Blood purification equipments MR F (k3% 110,876 113,893 (2.6) 39,214 38,122 2.9
Total @t 4,613,310 3,689,115 25.1 1,213,080 829,272 463
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDNT

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed a total of
9,304 employees. The breakdown by departments when
compared with last year is as follows:

ANBE

RZE—=F+A=+—0 AKEH
FEF9,304%EE - M AF WM AT o
I/ CNE

Department &P

2013 2012

—E2—-= —_Eg2—=

Production FE 5,660 5,720
Sales and marketing SHE RIS E 2,085 1,762
Research and development B 2% 927 906
Finance and administration B R ATIR 359 294
Quality control BEEd 143 139
Management B 89 80
Purchasing R a1 34
Total wEt 9,304 8,935

Save for the six employees (including the company secretary)
who are resided in Hong Kong and Europe, all the employees
of the Group are resided in Mainland China. During the
Year, total cost of salaries, welfare and social benefits of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB806,202,000 (2012:
RMB648,046,000).

Remuneration System

The Group's remuneration policy has been determined
based on its performance, changes in the local consumption
power and competition in human resources market. The
remuneration policy so determined has become the basis
of determining the salary level of employees recruited
for different positions. The salary of each employee is
determined according to the employee’s performance,
ability, employment conditions and the salary standards set
by the Company. Remuneration of Directors is determined
by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the
operating results of the Company, personal performance
of the Director and market competition. The proposed
remuneration of Directors requires approval by shareholders
at annual general meeting.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded a turnover of RMB4,613,310,000, representing
an increase of 25.1% over the previous financial year.
Net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
was approximately RMB387,984,000 (2012 : net
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately RMB996,486,000), representing a decrease
of approximately 61.1% as compared with the previous
year. Net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
excluding extraordinary items (which include the effect on
disposal of operation of BIG and exchange differences)
was approximately RMB936,941,000 (2012: net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB852,172,000 excluding the effect of operation of BIG
and exchange differences), representing an increase of
approximately 9.9% over the previous year.

EIRE S mEE DA
A1 %5 [0 R
BE-_Z—=%+-_A=+—HILEE"

FELFEHER AR®4,613,310,000
TR E—VRFEEERET25.1% c AR
RIEA AFE(LAEF49 A R%387,984,000
T (ZE—ZF AR RHEA ARG F
49 N R #996,486,0007T) ' & F —FE

F£#161.1% Nt & B 215 1 & 1A &
EBTERERZBERREENAR
RAIEA AFE(L AT F 49 A R%936,941,000
T (ZE—ZF T MBEBRTER
EREZBHARRD W‘ﬁﬁ/\@fﬁéﬁ\%/\
R #852,172,00000) ' 8 = —F & £ Ft
#79.9% o

Financial Summary BERE
2013 2012 Growth
—B-=F —T-fF R
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFRE AR®BTT %
Turnover = 4,613,310 3,689,115 25.1
Gross profit EH 2,726,866 2,112,420 29.1
Net profit attributable to the owners of AN & B A &5 45 F
the Company 387,984 996,486 (61.1)
Net profit attributable to the owners of ~ F&t#5 % B AR A
the Company excluding A ARG AR
extraordinary items 936,941 852,172 9.9
The extraordinary items included profit attributable HHEEBFEEEHBAENELE 2

from investment in BIG and loss on disposal amounting
to RMB497,421,000 (2012: RMB130,775,000), loss on
exchange differences amounting to RMB46,050,000 (2012:
gain of RMB29,719,000) and the effect on dissolution of
the Distribution Joint Venture with Medtronic amounting to
RMB5,486,000 (2012: RMB16,180,000).

Bk ARMA497,421,000T (ZE— =
F: AR%130,775,00070) ' [EXR =58
ZEﬂa/\EM%owoooE( T—=
FU A ANRYE29,719,0005T) & B x
BINDHEEELREEFVEZHE A
R 5,486,000 (2 ——F: AR
16,180,0007T) °

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IWEREmEEER D TEMKMH AR A



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDNT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a sound financial position
during the Year. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s
cash and bank balance amounted to approximately
RMB2,975,623,000. For the year ended 31 December
2013, net cash flow from operating activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB720,174,000. The Group
has maintained a sound cash flow position.

Total interest expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 were approximately RMB8,957,000 (2012:
RMB4,678,000).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2013, total net cash of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,575,723,000 (2012:
RMB1,297,856,000). The change in the total net cash was
mainly due to increase in cash from disposal of interest in
BIG.

Foreign Exchange Risks

The Group’s purchases and sales are mainly conducted in
the PRC. All of its assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated in RMB. For the year ended 31 December
2013, the Group has not encountered any material difficulty
due to currency fluctuation nor shortage of its own
operating funds. For the twelve months ended 31 December
2013, the Group had no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuation or hedging for such risk.

Due to the change in exchange rates, foreign exchange
loss equivalent to RMB46,050,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013 was recognised (2012: foreign exchange
gain equivalent to RMB29,719,000) by the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent Liabilities

On 21 April 2011, the Company received a notice of
arbitration issued by the Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre, which is related to the dispute in the contract with
Adject ApS for a maximum loss up to USD49.6 million.

The award of the arbitration was handed down on 5 March
2013 and the final award on taxation of costs was handed
down on 23 October 2013. The Board is of the view that
it will not have a significant impact on the Group after
considering the following factors:

(@) The Arbitral Tribunal dismissed Adject’s claims and only
awarded wasted expenditure to Adject; and

(b) The Company was awarded HK$12.05 million in costs
while Adject was only awarded HK$8.05 million.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS/
FUTURE MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLANS

1. According to the municipal planning of Weihai City,
the industrial zone of the Group’s medical consumables
production plant will be rezoned as commercial and
residential use. Hence, during the Year, the Group made
an investment of RMB1,014,295,000 on purchase of
land, production facilities and plant construction for the
purpose of the overall relocation of the industrial zone
for the Group’s medical consumables in future.

2. Investing RMB48,000,000 to construct the workshop
for irradiation sterilization, with a site area of 6,000
square metres. It is expected to commence production
in the fourth quarter of 2014.

Save for the above material investments and investment
plans, the Group had no material capital commitments or
any future plans involving significant investments or capital
assets acquisition as at 31 December 2013, and there was
no material acquisition and disposal in any other subsidiaries
and associates during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDNT

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS/
FUTURE MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLANS

(continued)
Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2013, the capital commitment of the
Group and the Company contracted but not provided for in
respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB656,312,000 (2012:
RMB643,721,000). The above amounts will be financed by
the internal resources of the Group.

Pledge of the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not pledge the
land use rights and buildings (2012: RMB Nil) but the
Company pledged bank deposits of RMB143,496,000 (2012:
RMB91,546,000) to secure the bills and banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Reserves and Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2013, total reserves of the
Group amounted to RMB8,592,708,000 (2012:
RMB8,463,356,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’'s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to the Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles.
As at 31 December 2013, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB2,151,298,000 (2012:
RMB2,038,346,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2013, facing the situation of rapid development of
medical device market and competition of medical device
companies in the PRC, the Company adjusted its product
lines and disposed its cardiovascular business. Despite such
disposal had caused considerable impact on profit for the
Year, cash received from the disposal would be beneficial to
the future business development and product lines expansion
of the Company. The establishment of sales channels in
orthopaedic products enhanced the brand awareness of
Weigao and its market position. The initial success of
marketing and sales restructuring lays a foundation for
maintaining customer relationship and expansion of new
customers in future.

Looking forward to 2014, facing the rapid development of
medical market and intensifying competition from companies
in the industry, together with the relocation of new factory
and increase in wage costs, the Company believes that these
will have a continuous impact in retaining talents and the
profitability of consumables for the Company. In view of this
situation, the Group will place emphasis on the followings:

1. Speed up the study and formulation of the long term
incentive scheme for employees to share the success of
the Group. The Group will continue to offer competitive
salary and fringe benefits packages to retain and
expand the work force.

2. Strengthen management capability in strategy and
merger and acquisition, fully capitalise on the customer
resource strengths in the PRC high-end market,
promote international collaboration by ways of joint
venture, co-operation, technology transfer, acquisitions
and mergers, introducing technologies and further
expanding product categories to consolidate the
competitive strengths of the various product lines of
the Company, and gradually expand the international
market share of existing products.
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I\/IANA@EI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWEDNT

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

3. Continue to intensify more efforts in the research
and development of new products to facilitate the
adjustment of product sales mix, while continuously
improve the product functionality, through adopting
irradiation sterilization and launching of new PEEK
rods in spine and trauma products, increase the
competitiveness of our products in the market.

4. Deepen the management of sales organisation, further
clarify the organizational structure and management
responsibilities for the sales system, establish
accountability system for management at different
levels in customer expansion and achievement of sales
growth, improve the efforts in professional training to
customers, increase resources deployment in marketing
and academic training, enhance the brand image of
Weigao to improve the sales network coverage of
the Group and market share of its product lines, and
thereby consolidate and expand its market share.

5. Conduct synergistic procurement and synergistic
sales to reduce procurement and distribution costs;
continue to enhance the investments in technological
improvement, and increase the level of automation with
an objective of assimilating the pressure from increase
in costs in relocation of new factory and rising labour
costs.

With study and formulation of long-term talent incentive
mechanism and the launching of more upgraded products
and large-scale new product series, clear of responsibility and
authorisation mechanism of restructured sales organisation,
the management believes that the Group will continue
to consolidate its leading position in the PRC market.
The Group and its employees are confident to face new
challenges.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

To all shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”)
of Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited, in compliance with the relevant requirements of
the Company Law and the Articles of Association of the
Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work
seriously and with diligence to protect the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the development plans of the Company and
provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board.
It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the
Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they are in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the Articles
of Association of the Company, and in the interests of its
shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited financial statements and the dividend to be
proposed by the Board for presentation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. We are of the opinion that the
Directors, the chief executive officer and other senior
management of the Company are able to strictly observe
their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and
to work in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. The transactions between the Company and
connected parties are in the interests of the shareholders as
a whole and under fair and reasonable price.

As of today, none of the Directors, chief executive officer
and senior management staff had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the
Company or infringed upon the interests of its shareholders
and employees. None of them was found to be in breach of
any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
BB R

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement
and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2013 and has
great confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer
Company Limited

Bi Dong Mei

Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Weihai, Shandong Province, the PRC

26 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company recognize the
importance of incorporating elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. This report outlines the principles and the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, which
have been adopted by the Group since its listing on 28
February 2004.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for
securities transactions by Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the
year of 2013.

The following summarizes the corporate governance
practices of the Company:

The Board of Directors

The Board take responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of overall business strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring the performance of
the senior management. The management is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group under the leadership of the
CEO. The Directors have the responsibility to act objectively
in the interests of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REBRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR ETEFETRESTINEE
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS SR (&)

(continued)
The Board of Directors (continued) BEE® (E)

Currently, the Board comprises ten Directors, including four B EEF&€Hm+LEFAK BHENA
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four  HfTE S MAFERNITESULMNE BT
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors as at 31 FMITEEF R_TE—=F+-_A=+—

December 2013 are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei
Mr. Wang Yi
Mr. Gong Jian Bo
(appointed on 18 March 2013)
Mr. Xia Lie Bo
(appointed on 18 March 2013)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Xue Li

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua

Mr. Christopher J. O'Connell
(resigned on 1 July 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lo Wai Hung
Mr. Li Jia Miao

Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the
Board currently comprises four independent non-executive
Directors. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of the Appendix 16
of the Listing Rules, each of the independent non-executive
Directors has confirmed by annual confirmation that he/
she has complied with the independence criteria set out in
Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Director consider that all
four independent non-executive Directors are independent
under these independence criteria and are capable to
effectively exercise independent judgment. Amongst the four
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lo Wai Hung has
the appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise required under
Rule 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings
regularly for at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also be convened
if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of
board meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days
prior to a regular board meeting. Reasonable notice will be
given to Directors for ad-hoc board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant
materials to all the Directors relating to the matters
brought before the meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable requests, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

Number of Board meetings held during the year 2013: 6.

BFESETESTANERE
TR (@)

EEEER (8)

R-F-ZFEBTNEFSITHRAE:

6IX °
The attendance of each Director at Board meetings during &HZ-_ZT—=F+_A=+—HItFE"
the year ended 31 December 2013 was as follows: EEFLFESFEERNEBEAEINNT
Attendance
in 2013
B-ZT—=
B HH W
(%)
Executive Directors BITES:
Mr. Zhang Hua Wei ok 2 g 5 A 100%
Mr. Wang Yi FREE 83%
Mr. Gong Jian Bo SRR EE 100%
(appointed on 18 March 2013) (RZE—=F=A+/\BEZMT)
Mr. Xia Lie Bo BIREE 100%
(appointed on 18 March 2013) (R—ZE—Z=ZF=ZA+/\BEZMT)
Non-executive Directors FRITES:
Mr. Chen Xue Li Bk 22 1| 5 A4 50%
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua BB 2+ 67%
Mr. Christopher J. O'Connell Christopher J. O'Connell %t & 0%
(resigned on 1 July 2013) (R=—ZFE—=F+A—HEMT)
Independent non-executive Directors BUFERITESE:
Mr. Lo Wai Hung ERELEE 100%
Mr. Li Jia Miao FRIRTE 100%
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong TR 2+ 100%
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia TIRE T 100%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are
recorded, and draft minutes and final version are submitted
to Directors for review within reasonable time after the
meetings, normally 14 days after the meetings.

Secretary of the Board assists the chairman to establish
meeting agenda, and each Director may request inclusion of
items in the agenda.

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered
having conflict of interests or material interests will not
be dealt with by way of written resolutions. The Directors
concerned can express views but will not be counted in the
quorum of meetings and shall abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution(s).

All Directors have access to the company secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with, and advising the Board on compliance
matters.

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are kept
by the company secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the CEO should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Chen Xue Li is the
Chairman of the Board and a non-executive Director who is
not involved in the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business. Mr. Zhang Hua Wei is the CEO of the Company and
an executive Director of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is appointed by the Board
itself, who is responsible for the leadership of the effective
operation of the Board, and ensuring that all major and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board on a timely
basis and in a constructive manner. The CEO is appointed
by the Board. He is responsible for the management of daily
operations of the Company and the implementation of the
strategies and plans determined by the Board.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Experience

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors
possess administrative leadership, diversified knowledge
and extensive management experience in the industry. The
independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
knowledge, experience and judgment in different areas.
The Board will seriously consider the objective views of the
independent non-executive Directors for making decisions,
and regard this as an effective guidance for the Group’s
business direction.

Directors’ responsibility

The Board manages the business of the Company on behalf
of its shareholders. The Directors consider that they are
obliged to fulfill their responsibilities in a prudent, diligent
and faithful manner, so as to create value for shareholders
and safeguard the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on
12 August 2005 in accordance with the requirement of
the Code. The remuneration committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lo Wai
Hung, Mr. Li Jia Miao, Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong, Mrs. Wang Jin
Xia and a non-executive director, Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua.

The remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy, the performance and the remuneration of executive
Directors and members of senior management, the existing
terms of service contracts of the executive Directors. The
objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that the
Company is able to attract, retain and motivate high-caliber
staff, which is vital to the success of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

In reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and members of senior management,
the remuneration committee considers their responsibilities,
skills, expertise and contribution to the Group's performance
and whether remuneration packages are competitive and
sufficient to ensure that the Group is able to attract and
retain the best available executive talent.

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment
and recommendation by the Remuneration Committee to the
Board for further review and approval, which is subsequently
subject to shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
Directors remuneration packages is to enable the Company
to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against
corporate objectives. Under the policy, a Director is not
allowed to approve his own remuneration.

During the Year, one meeting has been held by the
remuneration committee. All members of the remuneration
committee attended the meeting during which the
responsibilities of the remuneration committee were defined
and matters such as the remuneration policy, incentive
mechanism of the Directors and senior management
of the Group were reviewed. The chairman of the
remuneration committee reports the findings and provides
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 21
May 2012. in accordance with the requirement of the Code.
The nomination committee comprises Mr. Lo Wai Hung, Mr.
Li Jia Miao, Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong, Mrs. Wang Jin Xia and Mrs.
Zhou Shu Hua. The chairman of the nomination committee is
Mr. Lo Wai Hung. The terms of reference of the nomination
committee have been defined. The principal duties include:—

—  to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

—  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

- to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors.

— to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties and shall have access to
independent professional advice if necessary. All members
of the Nomination Committee have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management
for obtaining necessary information.

Each of the Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a specific term of
three years, and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

The Company has not experienced any casual vacancy
for members of the Board. In the event that there is such
circumstance, the Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after his appointment.

The Board selects and nominates Director candidates based

on whether they possess the skills and experience needed for
the Group’s development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee
on 30 May 2013. The corporate governance committee
comprises Mr. Zhang Hua Wei as the chairman of the
committee and Mr. Lo Wai Hung, Mr. Li Jia Miao, Mrs. Fu
Ming Zhong and Mrs. Wang Jin Xia as members. The terms
of reference of the corporate governance committee have
been defined. The principal duties include:-

(@) to develop and review the Company’'s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Corporate Governance Committee will be provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall have
access to independent professional advice if necessary. All
members of the Corporate Governance Committee will have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary
and separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management for obtaining necessary information.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR B s5EEE

A s A
PEERRE

BFESETESTANERE
TR (@)

ERELEAY

AKRABR-—_ZE—=FRA=+HEHKI
EEREES X EARTECHIERE
BEE (EAZESER)UAREREEL
EERFEEE NARZEIRERER
T (ERKE) hEERLTEG 2 BiE
HECRAT - TEBEE:

(@) #HERBFEARRNEREAREK
LER URAESFROEZ:

b) BIAREREELRSREEAEN
BIIRFEEXER

(0 BENERERARBEETERZRE
ERENEONBRNER

d) BIE B hERREEIEFNE
SEAMERFM(E) R

(e) mAARLDREST (TR BB K&
E(REREARRE) ANEE-

CEEATRSRREMTRERURE
TEBE REARERTS BT
BR - CEEREBRNAREETH
KD RSB REBE IR - ERIA B AT AT
TEVNLEV TRV ST
ante

moTEM

=z

%10 B R R

33



34

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

a

TEERHRE
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

All Directors are provided with explanations and information
by the management of the Company so as to enable them to
have discussions and make assessment at Board meetings.

All Directors acknowledge the responsibility for the
preparation of its accounts, with the responsibility statement
in respect to the financial reports made by the Directors set
out in this annual report. The auditors have also made a
statement about their responsibilities in the auditor’s report.

The Board presents a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment on the position and prospects of
the Group in all shareholder communications.

Internal control

Directors are responsible for reviewing the internal control
and risk management system of the Company periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and efficiency. With the support of
the internal audit department, they will review the practices,
procedures, expenditure and internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. The management will
regularly monitor the concerns as reported by the internal
audit department to ensure appropriate remedial measures
have been implemented. The Board or senior management
can also request the internal audit group to review the
specific scope of concerns and report the significant findings
of such review to the Board and the audit committee.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group.

The Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training program and budget.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lo Wai
Hung (chairman of the audit committee), Mr. Li Jia Miao,
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong, Mrs. Wang Jin Xia and a non-executive
Director, Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua. The terms of reference of the
audit committee have been clearly defined. Its principal
responsibilities include:

—  To be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; to formulate the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors and to propose the Board to submit the
same at the general meeting for consideration. To
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors when the general meeting is
authorizing the Board to determine the remuneration
of the auditors, and to address any questions regarding
the resignation or retirement of that auditor.

—  To review and oversee the independence and objectivity
of engaging external auditors and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Committee shall discuss with the
auditors regarding the nature and scope of the
audit and the relevant reporting obligations before
commencing the audit.

—  To develop and implement policy in engaging external
auditors to provide non-auditing services. For the
purpose of this requirement, external auditors includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership
or management with that audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm domestically or internationally.
The Committee shall report to the Board, in respect
of any matters in which it considers that an action or
improvement is needed and to make recommendations
as to the steps to be taken.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

—  To monitor the completeness of the financial statements
of the Company and the annual report and accounts
and half-year report and quarterly report of the
Company and to review the significant opinion of
the respective financial reporting contained therein.
In this regard, the committee will review the relevant
statements and reports of the respective annual report
and accounts, half-year report and quarterly report of
the Company before submitting the same to the Board.

— To oversee the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures of the Company.

During the Year, the audit committee has convened four
meetings, at which, they have primarily discussed and
reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual results and have
discussed and considered the internal control procedures of
the Group. The attendance of each Director is set out below:
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Attendance
in 2013
N _E—=
B HH %
(%)
Independent non-executive Directors BIUFRTES
Mr. Lo Wai Hung ERELEE 100%
Mr. Li Jia Miao FREFE 100%
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong AP Z L 100%
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia FHREL LT 100%
Non-executive Director FEMITES
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua R E 2+ 50%

The scope of responsibilities of the audit committee is
available on the websites of Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

There was no disagreement between the audit committee
and the Board in respect of the selection, appointment,
resignation or removal of external auditors during the year of
2013.

The audit committee can consult independent professional
advice in accordance with stated procedures at the expense
of the Company.

In 2013, the audit fees paid to the external auditors by the
Company was approximately RMB3,140,000.

Mandate Granted to the Board

The Board should assume the responsibility for the leadership
and monitoring of the Company, and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company. The
responsibilities of the Board are defined explicitly in the
Articles of Association of the Company.

(1) to be responsible for convening shareholders’ meetings
and report on its work at shareholders’ meetings;

(2) to implement the resolutions passed at shareholders’
meetings;

(3) to determine the business plans and investment plans of
the Company;

(4) to formulate the annual fiscal budgets and final
accounts of the Company;

(5) to formulate profit distribution proposals and loss
recovery proposals of the Company;

(6) to formulate proposals for increasing or reducing of the
registered capital of the Company and proposals for
issue of debentures of the Company;

(7) to draft proposals for the merger, division and

dissolution of the Company;
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Mandate Granted to the Board (continued)

(8)

(10)

(11)

(12)

The

to determine the establishment of the internal
management bodies of the Company;

to appoint or dismiss the general manager of the
Company, and to appoint or dismiss the deputy general
manager and other senior management, including
the person in charge of finance, pursuant to the
recommendations of the general manager, as well as to
determine their compensations;

to formulate the basic management system of the
Company;

to formulate proposals for amendments to the Articles
of Association of the Company; and

to exercise other functions as stipulated by the articles
of association or granted by the shareholders’ meetings.

Board has granted authority to the chief executive

officer to implement the following strategies and to be
responsible for the day-to-day operation:

(1)

to be in charge of the management of production and
operation and to organize the implementation of the
resolutions of the Board;

to organize the implementation of the annual business
plans and investment plans of the Company;

to draft proposals for the establishment of internal
management bodies of the Company;

to draft the basis management system of the Company;

to formulate the basic rules and regulations of the
Company;

to propose the appointment or removal of the deputy
general manager and other senior management,
including the person in charge of finance, of the
Company;
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Mandate Granted to the Board (continued)

(7) to appoint or dismiss the management personnel other
than those required to be appointed or dismissed by the
Board; and

(8) to exercise other functions granted by the Articles of
Association and the Board.

The chief executive officer grants authorisation to chief
financial officer, and senior management within his terms of
reference.

The Board is supported by four committees, namely the
audit committee, the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and corporate governance committee. Each of
the committees has its defined terms of reference covering
its duties, rights and functions. The chairmen of the
respective committees report to the Board regularly and
make recommendations on matters discussed as appropriate.

Communications with shareholders

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Director.

The shareholders’ meeting provides an effective forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
chairman, together with the chairmen or members of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
nomination committee are available to answer shareholders’
questions.

The procedures demanding for a poll and the rights of
shareholders to demand for a poll are included in the notice
of shareholders’ meeting and the accompanying circular.
The relevant procedures are explained at the shareholders’
meetings.

The external auditor has been appointed as the scrutineer to
ensure the votes cast are properly counted and recorded.

The results of the poll have been posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company
on the business day following the meeting.
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TEERHRE
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Communications with shareholders (continued)

Furthermore, the Company continues to enhance the
ongoing communications amongst the shareholders,
investors and analysts, including:

e  establishing specialized bodies and employing staff to
serve investors and analysts and answer their relevant
questions;

e arranging site visits to the production bases of
the Company in order to keep them abreast of
the operations and the latest developments of the
Company;

e collecting and analyzing, in a timely manner, the
respective opinions and recommendations on the
operations of the Company given by securities
analysts and investors and compiling them into reports
periodically, and selectively adopting them in the
operations of the Company;

e providing relevant information, including introduction
to the Company, the Board and corporate governance,
results of the Company, financial summary, marketing
materials of the Company and press releases on the
website of the Company; and

e taking the initiative to communicate with various
parties, particularly following the announcement of
interim, annual results and substantial investment
decisions, organizing briefings, press conferences and
one-on-one interviews with investment institutions.
Besides, the Company also regularly communicates with
investors on a one-on-one basis.
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DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board
remains informed and relevant. The directors are committed
to complying with the CG Code A6.5 which came into
effect on 1 April 2012 on directors’ training. All directors
have participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars and/or studying materials to director’s
duties and responsibility and provided a record of training
they received for the financial year ended 31 December 2013
to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors arising out of corporate activities of
the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the new CG
Code. Such directors’ liability insurance will be reviewed and
renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2013, no claim has
been made against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EF EELEAEEAER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei, aged 50, is the vice chairman and
general manager of the Company and vice chairman of
Weigao Holding Company Limited (“Weigao Holding”). Mr.
Zhang studied politics and economics at the Weihai Campus
of Shandong University from 1996 to 1998. Mr. Zhang was
the deputy factory director of Weigao Holding from 1988 to
1998, and has been the general manager of Weigao Holding
since 1998. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in December
2000.

Mr. Wang Yi, aged 54, is an executive Director and deputy
general manager of general affairs of the Company. Mr.
Wang studied Business Administration at the Shandong
Cadres Distance Learning University from 1994 to 1997. He
joined Weigao Holding in 1988 and was production director
from 1988 to 1989, head of the No. 2 branch of Weigao
Holding from 1989 to 1992 and manager of the No. 3
branch of Weigao Holding from 1992 to 2004. Mr. Wang
joined the Company in December 2000.

Mr. Gong Jian Bo, aged 46, is an executive Director
of the Company and the general manager of Shandong
Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited ("Weigao
Orthopaedic”). Mr. Gong graduated from & M T & # 5 &= 2
2 (Changzhou Wulin Qian Huang College*) in 1987. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Gong joined &M E#E S =
EEZ WM (Changzhou Wujin The Third Medical Device
Factory*) (“Changzhou Wujin”) in 1988. He served as an
assistant to the factory director and worked in technical and
sales departments and was subsequently promoted to factory
director in 1993. Changzhou Wuijin is principally engaged
in the research and development, sales and production
of medical devices in China. Mr. Gong joined Weigao
Orthopaedic in February 2005. Mr. Gong has over 20 years
of valuable experience in medical device industry in China.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Xia Lie Bo, aged 36, is an executive Director of the
Company and the general manager and the chairman of
Weihai Weigao Blood Purification Products Company Limited
("Weigao Blood Purification”). Mr. Xia graduated from 2
BEZEHERER (Ningbo Advanced Technical College*)
in 1998. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xia served as
a management trainee in the quality control division in 2
KGR EZEBMAMR AR (Ningbo Yatai Medical Device
Company Limited*) (“Ningbo Yatai”) since August 1998.
Ningbo Yatai is a sino-foreign joint venture company
which is principally engaged in research and development,
manufacture and sale of plasma segregator and blood lavage
set. Mr. Xia subsequently joined #/I EREFEEEEMA
fR ‘AR (Zhejiang Yu Huan Wei Kang Medical Equipment
Company Limited*) (“Yu Huan”) in November 2000 and
was responsible for strategic planning and management
in Yu Huan which is principally engaged in research and
development of protein A-based immune absorption column
in China. In April 2002, Mr. Xia joined #T/I R 88 & W&l A
fR A R] (Zhejiang Ke Rui Biotech Company Limited*) which
is principally engaged in research and development of blood
purification related products and he was responsible for
overall business management. In May 2003, Mr. Xia joined as
a project manager in /8 MFEZEEZM AR AT (Shanghai
Hoxen Company Limited*) which is engaged in distribution
of renal failure treatment equipment and blood purification
therapy instrument in China. Mr. Xia joined Weigao Blood
Purification in October 2004. Mr. Xia has over 10 years of
valuable experience in operation and management in blood
purification industry in China.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xue Li, aged 62, is the Chairman of both the
Company and Weigao Holding. Mr. Chen founded Weigao
Holding in 1988, and was the head of the company from
1988 to 1998. Mr. Chen has been elected as the chairman of
the Company since December 2000. He received the award
of Entrepreneur of Weihai Economy Development in June
2003.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE EENENAERAE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua, aged 57, is a non-executive Director
of the Company and financial deputy general manager of
Weigao Holding. Mrs. Zhou studied Business Administration
at the Weihai Campus of Shandong University from 1999 to
2001. Mrs. Zhou joined Weigao Holding in 1989 and held a
number of positions such as head of the finance division in
the finance department, manager of the finance department
and deputy general manager of Weigao Holding.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung, aged 54, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
was appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of audit committee and a member of remuneration
committee of the Company on 10 August 2009. Mr. Lo
is also an independent non-executive director of Talent
Property Group Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and C Cheng Holdings Limited which
is listed on Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and an independent
director of China Merchants Property Development Co. Ltd.,
a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Jia Miao, aged 74, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Li is a senior economist and obtained an
university qualification major in economics and management
in Hohai University in 1998. Mr. Li has over 45 years of
pharmaceutical related management experiences and has
been an assistant general manager and a general manager
in Nanjing Pharmaceutical Company since he joined NPC in
1965. Prior to the retirement of Mr. Li in 2005, he was the
chairman of Nanjing Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited
since 2000. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 28 February 2007.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong, aged 63, senior economist and
associate chief pharmacist and has over 40 years of working
experience, particular in the area of management experience
in the pharmaceutical and healthcare products industry.
Mrs. Fu obtained a master’s degree in engineering from
the Harbin Institute of Technology in March 1992. Mrs. Fu
was previously a workshop director, the head of the quality
control office, the office head and the vice factory manager
of The Third Harbin Pharmaceutical Factory from June
1972 to March 1999. Mrs. Fu was a director of Harbin City
Pharmaceutical Group and the general manager of Harbin
Pharmaceutical Company Limited from March 1992 to
December 1997. She was also a deputy general manager of
China Medicines Group (currently known as China National
Pharmaceutical Group) from December 1997 to January
1999 and she was a director of China Medicines Group
Corporation from January 1999 to July 2009 respectively.
Mrs. Fu was the executive deputy general manager of
China National Pharmaceutical industry Corporation from
January 1999 to January 2001. Ms. Fu was the chairman
of National Medicines Company Limited, (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from February 2001 to
April 2008. Mrs. Fu has been a director of Shenzhen Accord
Pharmaceutical Company Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange) since April 2008 and was the
chairman from April 2008 to December 2008. Ms. Fu has
also been a director of Sinopharm Industrial Investment Co.,
Ltd. from July 2008 to December 2010. Mrs. Fu was the
general manager, duty chairman and director of Sinopharm
Group Co. Ltd., (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange) during the period from February 2006
to December 2009, and December 2009 to January 2011
respectively.

Mrs. Fu is currently the chairman of China Association of
Pharmaceutical Commerce and she joined the Company in
October 2011.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE EENSMAEREAER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. Wang Jin Xia, aged 59, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mrs. Wang is a senior
economist and has over 30 years of working experience,
especially the management experience in the pharmaceutical
commerce, pharmaceutical and healthcare products industry.
Mrs. Wang obtained a bachelor degree in economics
(g2 2+ ) from Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics in July 1983 and was assigned to work in State
Pharmaceutical Administration of China Pharmaceutical
Company (IR B &ERFHBIE LA F]) . Mrs. Wang was
deputy director of the finance division, deputy director and
director of the information division of China Pharmaceutical
Company ( A B E &2 F)) during the period from 1989 to
2002, and deputy secretary of China Pharmaceutical Business
Association (R EI B 2 ¥ 1€ ) in 1999. Mrs. Wang was
an independent director of Jiangsu Wu Zhong Industrial
Company Limited CT# R P EERKR M E R A7) (Stock
code: 600200), a company listed in Shanghai, from April
2002 to April 2010. Mrs. Wang held the positions of the
general secretary and the vice president of China Association
of Pharmaceutical Commerce (FFEIE Z % 1E) and the
person in charge of the pharmaceutical chains branch of
China Association of Pharmaceutical Commerce ( 7 5 &8 %%
BEWHE@EHEEEDE) from 2000 to 2012. She is also an
expertise committee member of the pharmaceutical industry
under the Ministry of Commerce (B 5 i % 30 %8 @R BT )
and an expertise member of price evaluation division under
the National Development and Reform Commission. ([BIZX
BRNNEZESERERTEFR D), senior advisor of
China Nonprescription Medicines Association (B JEFE 75
&) | visiting professor of Shanghai Jiao Tong University
Continuing Education School.

Mrs. Wang is also an independent non-executive director
of Shanghai-listed Merro Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd since
September 2007, (stock code: 600297) and also the
independent non executive director of Shandong Realcan
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002589), a company
listed in Shenzhen, since November 2009.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Supervisors

The Company has a committee of Supervisors whose
primary duty is to supervise the senior management of the
Company, including the Board, Directors, managers and
other senior officers. The function of the committee of
Supervisors is to ensure that the senior management of the
Company acts in the interests of the Company, and does
not violate the rights of the Company’s shareholders and
employees. The committee of Supervisors reports to the
shareholders in general meetings. The articles of association
provides that the committee of Supervisors has the right
to investigate the Group’s financial affairs; to supervise
the directors, general manager and other senior officers of
the Company in the event that they contravene any laws,
administrative regulations or the articles of association in
the performance of their duties; to require the Directors,
general managers and other senior management to rectify
any activities committed by them that is harmful to the
interests of the Company; to examine financial reports,
result reports, profit distribution plans and other financial
documents prepared by the Board to be submitted to
shareholders in general meeting, and in appropriate cases, to
appoint certified accountants or certified practicing auditors
in the name of the Company to assist in such review; to
propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings of
shareholders; to represent the Company during negotiations
with the Directors or to initiate legal proceedings against
the Directors; and other functions and powers given
by the shareholders in general meeting. The committee
of Supervisors currently comprises the following three
members:

Mrs. Bi Dong Mei, aged 50, is the supervisor of the
Company and the chief accountant of Weigao Holding. Mrs.
Bi graduated from the Economic Management Department
of Shandong Cadres Distance Learning University in 1997.
She joined Weigao Holding in December 1988 and has been
the head of the finance division and the deputy manager of
the infusion sets branch from 2001 to 2004. She joined the
Company in December 2000.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EX EEhafEEAR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Supervisors (continued)

Ms. Chen Xiao Yun, aged 40, is the supervisor of the
Company and the finance manager of Weigao Holding.
Ms. Chen studied financial accounting at the Shandong
Broadcast and Television University from 1994 to 1998. She
joined Weigao Holding in July 1991 and was the head of
the finance division in finance department and the assistant
to the manager of infusion sets branch. She joined the
Company in December 2000.

Mr. Long Jing, aged 39, is currently the supervisor of the
Company and the sales manager of the Company. Mr. Long
graduated from Shandong University of Economics ( LU
#FEERT) in 1996 with a bachelor degree in marketing.
In 2005, Mr. Long obtained a master degree in business
management from Shandong University. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Long joined L& ¥k T #4227 (Shandong
Plastic Materials Industry Company*) from 1996 to 2002
and served as the sales chief and was principally responsible
for the sales and marketing of raw materials. In July 2005,
Mr. Long joined the Company and served as the assistant
manager of sales department. Mr. Long is a certified public
accountant in the PRC and has over 10 years of valuation
experiences in sales and marketing in China.

Senior Management

Mr. Cui Jin, Jason, aged 42, has over 15 years working
experience in accounting, costing, budgeting, treasury
management, financial planning and analysis. Mr. Cui joined
Weigao Holding Company Limited, the holding company of
the Group, in August 2011 as the chief financial controller.
Mr. Cui worked for Bard Medical Device Beijing Limited
initially as finance manager between November 2006 to
March 2008 and was its finance director between April
2008 to July 2011. Mr. Cui worked for Velux China Limited
as the finance manager (August 2004 to October 2006),
Kerr-Mcgee China Petroleum Limited as budget coordinator
and project cost controller (September 2002 to July 2004),
Xian Janssen Pharmaceutical Company Limited as finance
manager (September 2000 to September 2002) and Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as senior auditor (September 1998 to
August 2000). Mr. Cui graduated from Peking University
with a bachelor degree in finance and obtained a master
degree major in enterprise management and accounting
from Peking University.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Song Xiu Shan, aged 50, is the head of sales
department of the Company. Mr. Song was graduated from
University of Shandong, major in corporate administration in
2001, and studied in an advanced business administration
program administered by the People University of China
from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Song joined Weigao Holding in June
1992, and has been the manager of the Beijing sales branch
of Weigao Holding, marketing manager of infusion device
branch of Weigao Holding, and has extensive experience in
corporate marketing. He joined the Company in December
2000.

Mr. Zhou De Jun, aged 55, is the deputy general manager
(blood transfusion division) of the Company. Mr. Zhou
obtained a diploma of economics and management from
the Communist Party Colleague of Shandong province. Mr.
Zhou joined the Company in November 1992 and has been
the deputy manager and deputy general manager of the
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhou has about 20 years of
valuable experience in medical device industry in China.

Ms. Chan Yuk Ying, Phyllis, aged 53, is the head
of business development and investor relations and is
a chartered accountant with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia and joined the Company in
May 2006. Ms. Chan has over 20 years of experience in
accounting and corporate finance.

Ms. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis, aged 45, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the Company
in May 2006. She is an associate member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Wong
has over 15 years of experience in corporate finance and
management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEWSE

The Directors are pleased to submit their annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

The Company was established and registered as a joint stock
company with limited liability in the PRC under the Company
Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000. The H Shares of the
Company were listed on GEM board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 27
February 2004 and were transferred to Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 29 July 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Based in Shandong province, the Company is principally
engaged in the research and development, production and
sale of single-use medical devices. The Group has a wide
range of products, which includes: 1) consumables (infusion
set, syringes, medical needle, blood bags, blood sampling
products, and other consumables); 2) orthopedic products;
and 3) blood purification consumables. The Group's products
are sold under its own brand names, including “Jierui” and
“Wego Ortho"”. The products are sold throughout the PRC
and exported to overseas. As at the date of this report, the
Group has a total customer base of 5,159 (including 3,090
hospitals, 414 blood stations, 616 other medical units and
1,044 distributors).

RESULTS, ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING,
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND
DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 69 of this annual report.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 30 April 2014 to Friday, 30 May 2014
(both days inclusive), for the purpose of determining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending the Annual
General Meeting, shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company's H share registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29 April 2014.

In order to qualify for attending the annual
general meeting:-
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Date of annual general meeting
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEWSE

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
RMBO0.031 per share (inclusive of tax). The total amount
of final dividends to be distributed shall be approximately
RMB138,768,000, of which dividends paid to non-resident
corporate shareholders will be subject to the corporate
tax applicable on the PRC sourced income pursuant to the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and the Regulations on the
Implementation of the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law that
became effective on 1 January 2008 and the applicable
tax rate is 10%. The listed issuer will be responsible for
withholding the relevant amount of tax from the dividend
payment and the dividends to be received by the non-
resident corporate shareholders will be net of withholding
tax. The proposal to declare and pay the final dividend will
be submitted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to
be held on Friday, 30 May 2014. Final dividend for non-listed
shares will be distributed and paid in Renminbi whereas
dividend for H shares will be declared in Renminbi and paid
in Hong Kong dollars.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Saturday, 7 June 2014 to Wednesday, 11 June 2014 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2013, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
entitlement of final dividend, shareholders should ensure
that all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6 June 2014.
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)

In order to qualify to entitle the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013:-

Latest time to lodge in the transfer 4:30 p.m., Friday,

instrument accompanied by the 6 June 2014
share certificates

Closure of register of members of the  Saturday,
Company for the entitlement of 7 June 2014 to
final dividend for the year ended 31 Wednesday,

December 2013 11 June 2014

Record date for entitlement of final
dividend

Wednesday,
11 June 2014

Despatch date of final dividend Friday,

11 July 2014

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during
the year of 2013 at an aggregate cost of approximately
RMB948,034,000 in order to enhance its production
capacity. Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2013, there was a total issued share
capital of 4,476,372,324 shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which include:
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note 31 to the financial statements.
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REPORT()FTHE[]RECTORS
EETHRE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, an amount of approximately
RMB2,151,298,000 (2012: RMB2,038,346,000) standing
to the credit of the Company’s reserve account, which
is computed based on the lower of, (i) in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards and regulation, the
aggregate amount of profit after taxation for the year and
(i) in accordance with Hong Kong accounting standards
and regulation, the retained profit brought forward after
deduction of the current year's appropriation to the statutory
surplus reserve and statutory public welfare fund.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the Year were:

Executive directors

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei
Mr. Wang Yi
Mr. Gong Jian Bo
(appointed on 18 March 2013)
Mr. Xia Lie Bo
(appointed on 18 March 2013)

Non-executive directors

Mr. Chen Xue Li

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua

Mr. Christopher J. O'Connell
(resigned on 1 July 2013)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung
Mr. Li Jia Miao

Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Each of the directors entered into service agreements with
the Company. The service contracts were signed for an initial
term of three years, unless and until terminated by either
party by giving notice to the other party with three months’
notice in writing. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, the service agreements of all directors are
renewable for successive three-year terms upon expiry.

The service agreements for directors do not stipulate for
any amount of remuneration or bonus payment to be
paid for services provided. The executive directors are paid
with a fixed sum of annual salaries for holding positions
in the Company and entitled to welfare benefits (including
retirement benefits and medical insurance) in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. All two
non-executive directors waived their directors’ remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and accepted a
nominal annual fee of RMB1.00.

According to the respective service agreements entered into
between the Company and each of the four independent
non-executive directors, each of Mr. Li Jia Miao, Mrs. Fu
Ming Zhong, Mrs. Wang Jin Xia received an annual fee of
RMB72,000, and Mr. Lo Wai Hung received an annual fee of
HK$120,000.

Apart from the foregoing, no directors have a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director, either directly or indirectly, is in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the directors
in the share capital of the Company and their associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (“SFQO™)), (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provision of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules:

(i) Long positions of non-listed Shares of
RMBO0.10 each of the Company

ESRRMINERRETE

R-E—=F+_A=+—H BFRAK
NRIREHEBEE (TEERBBENE
STIEBHNMEEG ([BHFEBEK
Bl ] ) EXVED) Z B% AN AR B ()R 1% 35 5
MEAE DI EXVERETR8n BB ME XK
NE| MR 2 #Es ( BIEREE S M
EAEH ARSI SR ER IR A%
BEREmSOAR)  (i)i§ TR ARAF
BIEFESFMAERAIEISHEAGTEZE
oz A as o Sk (iii) R & _E T AR Rl BT & AY
ETMRAREZTHETERR S 2IZESTE
([MZE<FE] ) MABAME AR R RE AT
ZRERIR

(i) RFELFHREMEAR¥O0.107THE
Nyl dv ok

Approximate

percentage of

Total the issued

number of share capital

Name of Types of non-listed of the

Director interests Capacity Shares Company

LFELEH

ERTEREH

EERR REER 21 JELTHRRIn B @gihaask

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei Personal Beneficial owner 32,400,000 0.72%
SREE B A & A EmlER A

Mr. Wang Yi Personal Beneficial owner 23,400,000 0.52%
FTREE & A BEmEAA

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua Personal Beneficial owner 15,300,000 0.34%
JEREE £+ & A EmlER A

In addition, Mr. Chen Lin, son of Mr. Chen Xue Li is SN BREBR L E 2 FRMEEE

holder of the Company’s 200,000 non-listed Shares,
representing 0.004% of the issue share capital of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES (continued)

(ii) Long positions in the registered capital of the
ultimate holding company, Weigao Holding,
an associated corporation of the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEWE

EFEREOHEZIREFR (4)

(i) REXRERAOFAERE (FLF
HEEE)EMEFHER

Approximate
percentage of
the registered

Amount of capital of

Name of registered Weigao

director Capacity capital Holding

HEERE

EMBEE

EERS 513 EMREE&H @#aask

Mr. Chen Xue Li Beneficial owner 45,079,000 36.95%
BREF &£ EmEAA

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei Beneficial owner 24,400,000 20.00%
RERE A EnEAA

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua Beneficial owner 12,200,000 10.00%
EIRE R £ EmEAA

Mr. Wang Yi Beneficial owner 7,320,000 6.00%
ERELE EmEAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors
nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of
the Company granted to any directors or their respective
associates or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire such rights in the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO recorded that other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholder had notified the Company of relevant interest in
the issued share capital of the Company.

FERR

RIBEESFNERAE
PR B Z LM PR

RZZE—=F+="A=+—8 '&EXR
1'71<1§'J§1%336§ﬁ7(_EE'JI;<
BREXHEEBEETE
ERERIN THIREENEARRRER
RARBEBITRATNE@ER -

Percentage Percentage

Number of of issued of total

non-listed non-listed  Number of issued

Name of Shareholder Capacity shares Shares H Shares share capital

EERT HERT

LMk BEaEn

BRREH 513 FLmHHE Bl HE & B Bl

Weigao Holding Company Limited Beneficial owner 2,159,755,676 83.3% 0 48.25%
AREEERAF

Medtronic Holding Switzerland GmbH Beneficial owner 322,884,324 12.5%  Not available 7.20%

EaEBA

Save as disclosed above, the following shareholders have
disclosed their relevant interests or long positions in the

BB R

B EXHREEIN THRREBRERER
ARRRDETRAF RSB A EEE 2%

issued share capital of the Company. R -
Number of % of
H shares issued H
Name of substantial shareholder interested share capital
RERZ HERT
FERERE HEE® B HEERFBESL
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 244,222,890(L) 12.96(L)
3,554,000(S) 0.18(S)
229,319,911(P) 12.17(P)
OppenheimerFunds, Inc. 196,632,000(L) 10.44(L)
Oppenheimer Developing Markets Fund 175,850,000(L) 9.34(L)
Baillie Gifford & Co 151,636,000(L) 8.05(L)
McCombie lain 151,636,000(L) 8.05(L)
Morrison Elaine 151,636,000(L) 8.05(L)
Plowden Charles 151,636,000(L) 8.05(L)
Tait Anthony 151,636,000(L) 8.05(L)
Telfer Andrew 151,636,000(L) 8.05(L)
Warden Alison 151,636,000(L) 8.05(L)
Tait Anthony 132,076,000(L) 7.01(L)
Telfer Andrew 132,076,000(L) 7.01(L)
Plowden Charles 118,388,000(L) 6.28(L)
Capital Research and Management
Company 114,662,000(L) 6.09(L)
Note: (L) — Long Position, (S)— Short Position, (P) — Lending Pool WEE: (D—F& - (S)— KB ~(P)— Al & E & 1n

*Source: Website of Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2013, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 3.44% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein accounted
for 0.75% of the total sales of the year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 23.48% of the
total purchases for the year and purchases to the largest
supplier included therein accounted for 7.0% of the total
sales of the year. During the Year, none of the directors of
the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the top five customers and suppliers of
the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive right under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of the PRC,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders as
defined under the “Listing Rules” of the Company or their
respective associates has any interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Company recorded transactions under
the following announced agreements which constitute
continuing connected transactions and connected
transaction, and are subject to reporting and announcement
requirements and exempt from independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.23 of the Listing
Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 3 April 2012, Jierui Subsidiary, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into packaging
materials supply agreement with Weigao Fusen, a 75%
owned subsidiary of Weigao Holding Company Limited
("Weigao Holding”) regarding the supply of packaging
materials, including medical based packaging boxes and
bags by Jierui Subsidiary with an annual cap of RMB5.0
million for the year of 2013. The actual transaction
amount for the Year was approximately RMB787,000.

On 3 April 2012, Weigao Medical Materials Company
Limited (“Weigao Medical Materials”) entered into a
supply agreement with Weihai Jierui Medical Products
Company Limited (“Jierui Subsidiary”) regarding the
supply of packaging materials, printing ink and thinner
by Weigao Medical Materials to Jierui Subsidiary with
an annual cap of less than RMB5.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. For the year under review,
the actual amount of transaction for the Year was
approximately RMB1,829,000.

On 23 August 2013, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement with Weihai Weigao Fusen
Medical Materials Company Limited (“ Weigao Fusen”),
a 75% owned subsidiary of Weigao Holding, pursuant
to which the Company purchased from Weigao Fusen
surgical suture, medical dressing and surgical tape with
an annual cap of less than RMB45.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. For the year under review,
the actual amount of transaction for the Year was
approximately RMB41,217,000.

On 3 April 2012, Weigao Jierui Medical Products
Company Limited (“Jierui Subsidiary”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company revised the
packaging material supply agreement with Shandong
Weigao Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Weigao
Pharmaceutical”), a non wholly owned subsidiary of
Weigao Holding, for the sales of packaging materials
from Jierui Subsidiary to Weigao Pharmaceutical with
an annual cap of less than RMB17.0 million. For the
year under review, the actual transaction amount was
approximately RMB8,455,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

On 13 December 2012, Weihai Weigao Blood
Purification Products Company Limited, (“Weigao
Blood”), a 70% owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into the hemodialysis dialysis fluid supply
agreement with Shandong Weigao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Weigao Pharmaceutical”), a non
wholly owned subsidiary of Weigao Holding for the
purchase of hemodialysis dialysis fluid, substitution
liquid, potassium power and calcium power with an
annual cap of less than RMB18.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. For the Year under review,
the actual amount of transaction was approximately
RMB 15,268,000.

On 23 August 2013, Weihai Weigao Medical Materials
Company Limited, (“Weigao Materials”), a 100%
owned subsidiary of the Weigao Holding entered into
the sanitary supplies agreement with the Company with
an annual cap of less than RMB26.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. For the Year under review,
the actual amount of transaction was RMB22,288,000.

On 23 August 2013, Weihai Weigao Construction
Company Limited (“Weigao Construction”), a subsidiary
of Weigao Holding entered into a master fitting out
contract with the Company regarding the provision
of fitting out work and decoration services to the
Company with an annual cap of less than RMB5.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. For the
Year under review, the actual transaction amount was
approximately RMB3,100,000.

On 13 July 2012, Shandong Weigao Automated
Equipment Company Limited (“Weigao Automated”),
the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
Weihai Weigao Qiquan Medical Company Limited
("Weigao Qiquan”), a 60% owned subsidiary of
Weigao Holding entered into the supply agreement,
pursuant to which Weigao Qiquan will supply Weigao
Automated with tailor-made production machines,
equipment, related parts and accessories with a cap of
less than RMB5.0 million. No transaction was recorded
during the Year under review.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

10.

11.

12.

On 27 May 2011, the Company entered into disposal
pressure monitoring Weihai Weigao Medical Device
Company Limited ("Weihai Weigao Medical”) kit supply
agreement with Weihai Weigao Medical regarding the
supply of disposal pressure monitoring kit by Weihai
Weigao Medical to the Company with an annual of
RMB6.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2013.
The actual transaction amount was approximately
RMB1,293,000.

On 13 July 2012, the Company entered into an
agreement with Shandong Weigao Medical Packaging
Products Company Limited (“Weigao Medical
Packaging”) (WX E S EER2REE R BRAF)
regarding the supply of multi-layer packaging materials
for syringes products by Weigao Medical packaging to
the Company with an annual cap of RMB20.0 million.
The actual transaction amount was approximately
RMB8,706,000.

On 3 April 2012, Jierui Subsidiary entered into an
agreement with Weigao Medical Packaging regarding
the supply of multi-layer packaging materials
for needles and IV catheters by Weigao Medical
packaging to Jierui Subsidiary with an annual cap of
RMB7.0 million. The actual transaction amount was
approximately RMB1,785,000.

On 11 April 2013, Shandong Weigao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Weigao Pharmaceutical”) entered
into an agreement with the Company regarding the
supply of single-use consumable with an annual cap
of RMB5.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. The actual transaction amount for the year was
RMB3,847,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

13.

14.

15.

On 1 April 2011, Weigao Holding, a controlling
shareholder of the Company as the landlord entered
into the tenancy agreement with the Company as
the tenant in respect of the lease of premises located
at 369 Wenhua Road West, Weihai, Shandong, the
PRC. The annual rental paid by the Company was
RMB2,100,000 in 2013.

On 14 December, 2012, Weigao Orthopaedic and
Medtronic SD renewed OEM agreement regarding
the manufacturing and sale of orthopaedic products
by Weigao Orthopaedic to Medtronic SD for the year
ended 31 December, 2013 with an annual cap of less
than RMB70.0 million. The actual amount of transaction
for the Year was approximately RMB39,233,000.

On 23 August 2013, Weihai Weigao Group Mould
Company Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Weigao Mould”) and Shandong Weigao
Medical Packaging Company Limited, the wholly
owned subsidiary of Weigao Holding (“Weigao Medical
Packaging”) entered into mould-making contract, under
which Weigao Mould manufactures multiple cavity
moulds for spike ports and injection ports for the year
ended 31 December 2013 with an annual cap of less
than RMB1.7 million. The actual amount of transaction
for the Year was approximately RMB1,368,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The above continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The independent non-executive directors have
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions have
been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company; (b) on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties; (c) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, of the Company are of the view that all of the
above transactions were on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company
and that the terms of the relevant agreements were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that the continuing connected
transactions as disclosed above fall under the definition of
continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
have confirmed in a letter to the Board to the following
effect with respect to the continuing connected transactions
of the Company that such transactions:

(i)  have received approval from the Board;

(i) were conducted in accordance to the pricing policy;

(iii) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the cap amount for the financial

year ended 31 December 2013 disclosed in the relevant
announcement.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Disclosure of Information on Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes
of information on Directors during the period are stated as
follows:—

1. Mr. Gong Jian Bo has been appointed as the executive
director of the Company with effect from 18 March
2013.

2. Mr. Xia Lie Bo has been appointed as the executive
director of the Company with effect from 18 March
2013.

3. Mr. Christopher J. O'Connell resigned as the non-
executive director of the Company with effect from
1 July 2013.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xue Li
Chairman

Weihai, Shandong, the PRC
26 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEENREE

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER
COMPANY LIMITED

LEEEREEASS FRAKRMBARLE

(A joint stock limited company established in the People’s
Republic of China)

EBEIEBE8H
AOES—E3512

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 176, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEENREE

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as
at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

26 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
KB A 2R ATRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—FT—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

— =
retE

2013 2012
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
—Z2—= —E—_4F
B 5 ARBFRE ARKTET
Revenue WA 7 4,613,310 3,689,115
Cost of sales 5 & AR (1,886,444) (1,576,695)
Gross profit EH 2,726,866 2,112,420
Other income, gains and losses HAWA - Yoz M BB 8 10,484 107,749
Distribution costs 2 BN (1,161,236) (874,317)
Administrative expenses THAX (313,995) (212,893)
Research and development expenses  #f 3 [ < (208,921) (170,587)
Finance costs B & AR 9 (8,957) (4,678)
Share of profit (loss) of joint ventures &5 & & A & & F|
(E518) 2,820 (4,401)
Share of profit of associates FEAG B = 2 B B A 62,325 172,882
Loss on disposal of an associate & — Al S AR 2 18 (565,232) -
Profit before taxation B 5 B Al 544,154 1,126,175
Income tax expense FREH R < 10 (156,475) (129,805)
Profit for the year F s A 11 387,679 996,370
Other comprehensive income Hi2EEA (FAX)
(expense)
Items that may be reclassified HEensyoBEiasy
subsequently to profit or loss: HE
Exchange differences arising on MBI INER
translation of foreign operations EXERER
— subsidiaries —MEB AR (1,105) (626)
— an associate ——HBEQR (47,824) (4,847)
Reclassified to loss on disposal of BB EHE —M
an associate BE R EE 67,832 -
Total comprehensive income FAZTERAERE
for the year 406,582 990,897
Profit for the year attributable to: FRE N T oIS IEES -
Owners of the Company RRAIER A 387,984 996,486
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE (305) (116)
387,679 996,370
Total comprehensive income ZEBALE TS EIE
attributable to: fEfh:
Owners of the Company RRAIER A 406,887 991,013
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M 2 (305) (116)
406,582 990,897
Earnings per share — basic GREMN (EXR) 14 RMBAE®0.09T RMBAR™02271
SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ILREaSBEERas FERKRHER A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REe ISR R
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZE—=%+_-_A=+—H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
=5 —_=T—_F
+Z=A +=HA
=+—H =+—H
B & ARBTRE AR®TIT
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME K ERFZE 15 3,948,375 3,198,249
Investment properties WEWE 16 10,109 10,597
Deposits paid for acquiring MBI E  BE KRE
property, plant and equipment HrzENEe 83,323 59,407
Prepaid lease payments FENMEENRIE 17 514,693 461,520
Intangible assets BEEE 18 16,705 19,820
Interests in joint ventures RE &R AR ER 19 107,277 104,457
Interests in associates i Rl/NIC RO 3 20 128,458 2,525,106
Goodwill EES 21 202,900 202,900
Deferred tax assets BEEFEMEE 28 22,834 24,402
Other receivables — receivable H b UK — R —F
after one year 18 U EY - 1,684
5,034,674 6,608,142
Current assets BN E E
Inventories S 22 866,356 830,274
Trade and other receivables JEWE 53 R EAM
JE WK 23 2,227,947 1,651,028
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 40,000 -
Pledged bank deposits BIRMETER 24 143,496 91,546
Bank balances and cash RITHB AR S 25 2,975,623 1,297,856
6,253,422 3,870,704
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables JET & 5 5k M H A F&
(NE7 26 1,747,783 1,472,504
Borrowings — repayable RITER—BR—FA
within one year B 27 300,200 -
Tax payable JE 1R 34,319 57,253
2,082,302 1,529,757
Net current assets MmN E EFRE 4,171,120 2,340,947
9,205,794 8,949,089
Capital and reserves ERNGEE
Share capital R 7R 30 447,637 447,637
Reserves {1 8,592,708 8,463,356
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

VAN
N

BIFS AR SR

At 31 December 2013 R—ZE—=f+_-_A=+—H

31/12/2013 31/12/2012
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E2—-= —ET-_F
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
Bt & ARBTRE ARETET
Equity attributable to owners of RABIFHFEARGEER
the Company 9,040,345 8,910,993
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR R 2R 22,587 9,422
Total equity WA 4 ER 9,062,932 8,920,415
Non-current liability EMBEE
Borrowings — repayable RITIER—ER—F
after one year ‘EE 27 99,700 -
Deferred income EEWA 29 43,162 28,674
142,862 28,674
9,205,794 8,949,089

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 176
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

FORVTANGEVBRRCEEET
R-_Z—OEFE=A -+ xBHEREE
T2 - WU TEERREZTSEE:

Chen Xue Li Zhang Hua Wei
PR 22 F1) o 3 B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF EFE

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR B s5EEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARRRBRE
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FORNEAES
Share  Statutory Non-
Share  premium surplus  Translation Other  Retained controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Note)
kivER  EEER
k% 1] i ERRE  RNEE  REERA a1 FRRER @it
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETI
(i)
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-F-H 447,637 2,478 544 240,92 (16,928) 2,661 5,049,115 8,201,991 9,538 8,211,529
Profit for the year TER R - - - - - 996,486 996,486 (116) 996,370
Exchange differences arising on HEBNEBEENELZE
translation of foreign operations
- subsidiaries -HERE - - - (626) - - (626) - (626)
- an associate YN - - - (4,847) - - (4.847) - (4.847)
Total comprehensive income ER2ENALES
for the year - - - (5,473) - 996,486 991,013 (116) 990,897
Transfer to statutory reserve ERZETERE - - 14,696 - - (14,696) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution B2 A HHKE
(note 13) (lz13) - - - - -0 (82011) - (282,01)
At 31 December 2012 RIF-ZETZAST-B  M7637 2478544 255,658 (22,401) 2661 5748894 8910993 9422 8920415
Proft for the year KEEEH - - - - - % 387984 305 387679
Exchange differences arising on HERNEBEENEL
translation of foreign operations 8
- subsidiaries -WEAH - - - (1,105) - - (1,105) - (1,105)
- an associate -—RlERA - - - (47,824) - - (47,824) - (47,824)
Reclassified to loss on disposal of ENSREHE-RBELT
an associate E# - - - 69,054 (1222) - 67,832 - 67,832
Total comprehensive income EhzENAEE
for the year - - - 20,125 (1222) 387,984 406,887 (305) 406,582
Injection of minority shareholders YRR - - - - - - - 13,470 13,470
Transfer to statutory reserve ERZETERE - - - - - - - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution REAEHRS (WE13)
(note 13) - - - - - (277,535) (277 535) - (277,535)
At 31 December 2013 RIE-ZETZA=1t-H 447637 2,478,544 255,658 (2,276) 1,439 5,859,343 9,040,345 22,587 9,062,932

Note: The Articles of Association of the companies comprising the Company
and its subsidiaries incorporated in PRC require the appropriation of
10% of profit after taxation (prepared under the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC) each year to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share
capital. According to the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the companies comprising the Group, in normal circumstances, the
statutory surplus reserve shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into share capital and expansion of its production and
operation. For the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share
capital, the remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than
25% of the registered share capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
rAalenEmK

For the year ended 31 December 2013 @i—? =F+-A=1+—HLFE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
—2—-= —E-_F

ARBTRE AR®TR

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties

Prepaid lease payments charged to profit

or loss
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
Amortisation of intangible assets
Share of loss (profit) of joint ventures
Share of profit of associates
Loss on disposal of an associate
Realised profit on sales to an associate

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Release of deferred income
Exchange loss (gain)

Movements in working capital
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BEEE
B 1 B v 544,154 1,126,175
AEH T3 A% -
F B Uz A (5,947) (20,488)
A& P A 8,957 4,678
ME- -BENREETE
184,474 125,083
REMERE 372 144
HEZPHNERMNENEE
FKIA 11,048 9,991
RIZE IR 22,211 5,568
| A E 3,115 3,115
EBiEE &R RAIEE Cafl) (2,820) 4,401
JE(L B =R A & F (62,325) (172,882)
HEBENF ZEE 565,232 -
HE THERA 2 RKEIR
i A - (23,701)
HEWE BELEEZ
& (1,428) (13)
IR E M A AT [ (3,112) (7,474)
E 5 BB (W) 37,487 (26,797)

1,301,418 1,027,800

FEit (36,082) (367,273)
JE U & %EE,M&EWEH&

FRIEHE N (601,339) (204,970)
B E 5 BR R H b 1S

FRIEE N 216,418 436,089
i FE U A B0 17,600 31,086
KEPTRIR & 898,015 922,732
ERTEH (177.841) (116,701)
BEXERERSSEHE 720,174 806,031

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IWEREmEEER D TEMKMH AR A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

\/T\ Eﬁi/}lbi#&%

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &=

=+ _A=t+—HLFE

2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—g—= —T—_F
ARBFRE ARETET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRERY
Purchases of property, plant and BEME WEAEE
equipment (865,539) (864,481)
Purchases of intangible assets BERTEE - (5,200)
Deposit paid for acquiring property, B E  BE R EE
plant and equipment Y% E (83,323) (59,407)
Addition of prepaid lease payments TET A & FRIELE AN (65,433) (94,860)
Establishment of a joint venture I —fE & & QA - (80,000)
Dividend income received from W HR — [ B 8 A R Y AR
an associate WA 45,787 40,897
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME WERKBERS
plant and equipment KIE 14,978 4,726
Interest received 2 F B 5,947 20,488
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHEERE
investments (40,000) -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REMEEFRITER 136,248 233,867
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEBIRITER (188,198) (217,941)
Receipt of consideration of disposal of E’\\\J:EE*WHX&%W%
subsidiaries in prior year RNEIZRE 4,000 6,200
Disposal of an associate HE— R E QA 1,911,053 -~
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING RERBEE(MA)
ACTIVITIES HeRH 875,520  (1,015,711)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMERE
Repayments of borrowings BEEN (100) (84,012)
New borrowings raised FiEmeEE 400,000 -
Interest paid 2 F ,%\ (16,275) (4,476)
Dividend paid =ENLeS (277,535) (282,011)
Capital injection from non-controlling FE= HxHx%Zé(i&)\
shareholders 13,470 -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING MERBEE (FRA)Z
ACTIVITIES HeR 119,560 (370,499)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASHAND HR&RR&FR®MIBM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (D)8 1,715,254 (580,179)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENHBRERASEFRY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,297,856 1,851,238
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXEFHHTE (37,487) 26,797
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REXHEGRASFR/Y
AT END OF YEAR, representing bank BRITEREER
balances and cash 2,975,623 1,297,856
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—FT—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

GENERAL

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited (the “Company”) was established and
registered as a joint stock company with limited liability
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") under
the Company Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000.
Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Weigao
Holding Company Limited (“Weigao Holding”), a
company registered in the PRC with limited liability. The
address of the registered office of the Company is 312
Shi Chang Road, Weihai, Shandong Province, PRC. The
Company has relocated its principal place of business
to 18 Xing Shan Road, Weihai, Shandong Province, PRC
since May in 2013.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 27
February 2004 and the listing of the shares has been
transferred to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
since 29 July 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of single-use medical devices, orthopaedic
products and blood purification products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
which have been effective.

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

Guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011)

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

Amendments to
HKAS 1
HK (IFRIC)-Int 20

Except as described below, the application of the above
amendments to standards in the current year has had
no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—FT—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1,
the Group's ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is
renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’. Furthermore, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income
either before tax or net of tax. The amendments have
been applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation
of items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above
mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for
the first time the package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements and
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures, together with the amendments
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures (continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to
the Group as it deals only with separate financial
statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set
out below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor
has control over an investee when a) it has power over
the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and ¢)
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
All three of these criteria must be met for an investor
to have control over an investee. Previously, control
was defined as the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Additional guidance has been
included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has
control over an investee.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
whether they have control over all the existing
subsidiaries in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 10. The directors of the Company concluded
that there is no impact on the Group’s control over
the subsidiaries after the application of HKFRS 10 and
all the subsidiaries continue to be consolidated in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures,
and the guidance contained in a related interpretation,
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers, has been
incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS
11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control should be classified
and accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only
two types of joint arrangements — joint operations and
joint ventures. The classification of joint arrangements
under HKFRS 11 is determined based on the rights
and obligations of parties to the joint arrangements
by considering the structure, the legal form of the
arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the
parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant, other
facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS
31 had three types of joint arrangements — jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled operations and
jointly controlled assets. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily determined
based on the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint
arrangement that was established through a separate
entity was classified as a jointly controlled entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'_\_|
A7

2.

B AR M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11
(continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures
and joint operations are different. Investments in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method
(proportionate consolidation is no longer allowed).
Investments in joint operations are accounted for
such that each joint operator recognises its assets
(including its share of any assets jointly held), its
liabilities (including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue from
the sale of the output by the joint operation) and its
expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets and
liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to
its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the
applicable standards.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the classification of the Group's investments in joint
arrangements in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 11. The Group consistently used equity method
to account investments in joint ventures. The directors
of the Company concluded that there is no impact on
the classification of the Group's investments in joint
arrangements after the application of HKFRS 11.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the application of HKFRS
12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company have concluded that the
application of this standard will not have significant
impacts on the consolidated financial statements except
for more extensive disclosure about its interests in other
entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source
of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair
value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the
purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for
impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the
price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid
to transfer a liability, in the case of determining the
fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions.
Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS
13, the Group has not made any new disclosures
required by HKFRS13 for the 2012 comparative period.
Other than the additional disclosures, the application
of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (continued)

In addition, the Group has early adopted the
amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amounts
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets in advance of its
effective date which is 1 January 2014.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement
to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash generating
unit (CGU) to which goodwill or other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives had been allocated when
there has been no impairment or reversal of impairment
of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments
introduce additional disclosure requirements regarding
the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation
techniques used when the recoverable amount of an
asset or CGU was determined based on its fair value
less costs of disposal.

The Group has early applied the disclosure requirements
set out in the amendments to HKAS36 in preparing the
recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Except for amendments to HKAS36, the Group has
not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation (“new and
revised HKFRSs") that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

Amendments to Investment Entities’
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27
Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans:
HKAS 19 Employee Contributions?
Amendments to Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 9 and Transition
HKFRS 7 Disclosures?
Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities’
Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and
HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRS HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle*
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRS HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning

on or after 1 January 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010
to include the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 applicable to the Group
are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

e  With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented
in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may not have
significant impact on the amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities based on an analysis of the Group’s financial
instruments as at 31 December 2013.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realizable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—FT—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z

— =+ R=t+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z—=F+-_F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint controlled entity. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share
of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group'’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate or a joint venture, or when the investment (or
a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

Upon disposal or partial disposal of the Group's
interest in an associate or a joint venture in which
the Group lost significant influence or joint control
and discontinued the use of equity method, any
retained interest that is within the scope of HKAS 39
is measured at fair value on that date, the difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date, and the proceeds from disposing
of such interest (or partial interest) in the associate
or joint venture and the fair value of the retained
interest is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the Group lost
significant influence or joint control over the investee.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement of the previously held interest or the
retained interest to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z

—ZEFZASt—ALLER
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales
of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in its former subsidiary after the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving disposal of an investment, or a portion of
an investment, in an associate or joint venture, the
investment or the portion of the investment that
will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when
the criteria described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in relation
to the portion that is classified as held for sale from
the time when the investment (or a portion of the
investment) is classified as held for sale. Any retained
portion of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture that has not been classified as held for sale
continues to be accounted for using the equity method.
The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
at the time of disposal when the disposal results in the
Group losing significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for
any retained interest in the associate or joint venture in
accordance with HKAS 39 unless the retained interest
continues to be an associate or a joint venture, in
which case the Group uses the equity method (see the
accounting policy regarding investments in associates or
joint ventures above).

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales taxes and sales
returns.

Revenue from sales of medical products are recognised
when the medical products are delivered and title has
passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and buildings under
development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course
of development for production or for administrative
purposes, the leasehold land component is classified as
a prepaid lease payment and amortised over a straight-
line basis over the lease term. During the construction
period, the amortisation charge provided for the
leasehold land is included as part of costs of buildings
under construction. Buildings under construction are
carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses.
Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve)

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the year in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognized as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

The employees of the Group are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes, the obligations
of the Group under which are equivalent to those
arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan. Contributions to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E—FT—=F+-A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z

—ZEFZASt—ALLER
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent payments made to
acquire land use rights and are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the land use rights.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E—FT—=F+-A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress over their estimated useful lives after taking
into account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties measured using the
cost model

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties measured using the
cost model (continued)

Transfers to investment property are made when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced by
end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property. Transfers
from investment properties to owner-occupied property
(i.e., property, plant and equipment) are made when
and only when there is a change in use evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E—FT—=F+-A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs to
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing,
selling and distribution.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision, including those
arising from the contractual obligation specified in
the service concession arrangement to maintain or
restore the infrastructure before it is handed over to
the grantor, is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E—FT—=F+-A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are available-for-sale
("AFS") financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of financial assets of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial assets, or,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at loans
and receivables. The unlisted equity securities are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash and pledged
bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables and other AFS investments,
objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contracts, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z

—ZEFZASt—ALLER
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 — 180 days, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of impairment loss is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable or other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against to
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the
impairment takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, and
trade and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of financial liabilities and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liabilities, or, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EHZ =%

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumption concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, is discussed as below:

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. The discount rate represents
rate that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the future cash flow estimates have not
been adjusted. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of goodwill is RMB202,900,000 (2012:
RMB202,900,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 21.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and issue of new shares as well
as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing
debt.

BFERER (8)

ARREEHFYFEEHELRER
EITRA - MER/RRRFN IR &
EEEREARANEEBEARE
R RR - RBERESR AKEK
BBIR A BB BITH D R B AT
MEGREEREABTEHEER
EN

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS eMIA
Categories of financial instruments ST RER
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB’000
—g—= —T-_F
AR®TRT ARETT
Financial assets eMEE
Loans and receivables (including ERkEWFGIE (BERE
cash and cash equivalents) MIREeEEY) 5,241,545 2,921,767
Available-for-sale investments B ERE 40,000 -
Financial liabilities eMAR
Amortised cost B $H R AR 2,014,089 1,352,553
Financial risk management objectives and MEREBEEREBRRBER

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk

Currency risk

PRC subsidiaries of the Company with functional
currency of RMB have certain foreign currency sales,
purchases and bank balances and cash denominated
in US Dollar (USD), Hong Kong Dollar (HKD), and
Singapore Dollar (SGD), which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets which are included in
the bank balance and cash at the end of the reporting
period are as follows.

&MTR (&)

MERRERARREE (B)

i 4 I B
BB R

ARAZNEEERARE ZHE
B ARBEA X (XT) BT
(&) Kkt (o) HE
ZETIHEHE KRB MRITHEK
KB B fE AN B A S SN |

a8 o
AA

R|ER NEBEG ARITEH
EIRERNZAINEINE2EREE
ZEREEWT

Liabilities Assets
fiff HE

2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

-2-= “E-Cf —E-c% -5
ARBTR AEEFT ARETL AREFT
Currency of SGD ko - - 297,346 715,587
Currency of HKD BT - - 29,639 22,812
Currency of USD e - - 1,908,362 813
Other foreign currencies A - - 54 868

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of
HKD, SGD, USD and other foreign currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2012:5%) increase and decrease in the RMB
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year
where the RMB weakens 5% against the relevant
currency. For a 5% strengthening of the RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an opposite
impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

&MTAR (&)

MERRERARREE (B)

mEmEE (E)
EEmE (&)

TRFINAREEEH AR K ABEIN
MZER FANRTY®S% (ZE—=
F:5% ) ZHRE-SNRATEE
A B £ R EB R & SNEE & B P {5 A
ZHRRE WAEREYHINEREX
AEAEEYH I B - BRESNT
ERREREN ZAINET|E 2 B
THE W HIRIR5% 2 9MNE [E R &
HRABRFE 2 HE - LU TIEHEHEXRTR
g AR HEINEEES %R 2 A
FEBREEMN AR - WMARE R
FEREINE FHE5% @ Bl @ HARFER
BafNBEEEERTE-

2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—2—= —ET-—F
ARBFRE ARETET
Increase (decrease) in post-tax REE & mFIE i Ol L)
profit for the year

— If RMB weakens against — AR L INEEZE
foreign currency 95,004 31,453

— If RMB strengthens against —WARBLINEHE
foreign currency (95,004) (31,453)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate in
relation to pledged bank balances and borrowings with
fixed interest rate (notes 24 and 27).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate in
relation to bank balances and borrowings with variable
interest rate (notes 25 and 27). The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of saving/lending rate promulgated by the
People’s Bank of China.

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on
the interest rate level and outlook as well as potential
impact on the Group’s financial position arising from
volatility of the interest rate.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and borrowings with variable interest rate
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the bank balances and variable-
rate borrowings at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis points
(2012: 25 basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and it represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z

—=5+ZA=+—BHItFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates on bank balances and variable-rate
borrowings had been 25 basis points (2012: 25 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2013 would increase/decrease by
RMB5,776,000 (2012: RMB2,952,000).

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge the obligations
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debtors. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. @MIR (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERKREEEAERBE (B)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk e B 5 2 R
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group FEBERDECRRE  NEEE
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash RREFEEER AR HKIENE
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to eMBReEEY UAKREEEE
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects REEURAERENEKEMT
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors RE B - BIEEERERNER
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance BRI ERFEERREZL -
with loan covenants.
The following table details the Group's remaining TR ABIE 5 7 B 2 HAPR FF A & 51 AR
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial SEITESHEBENTRE L
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The HE - ZERNDBREBEERAEERER
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted TRIBENKFEHHNESREBEDN
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest AAEBREMEMBRE -ZRBEIE
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The FERARGHESRE-
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
Liquidity tables MEEZ K
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than Over  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 year 2-5 years 5 years cash flows 31.12.2013
%  RMB00D  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
RIB-Z§
nEFY FHRR® TZBZt+-B
ERfE PME 1525 2E5% BilsE bid £1] HEEE
% ABRRTR AEBTT ABBTTR ABBTTR ABBTR ABRTR
2013 I3-zk
Non-derivative financial L EMAR
liabilities
Trade payables ERERFTE - 853,553 - - - 853,553 853,553
Bills payable EREE - 238,840 - - - 238,840 238,840
Other payabes HBEHE - 499,9% - - - 499,99 499,99
Other payables for the acquisition of ~ SEAE M B A EE/
additional interest in  subsidiary Eaf A ERTE - 22,000 - - - 22,000 22,000
Bortowings e 6.15% 309,293 219 115,511 - 425,03 399,700
1,923,682 219 115,511 - 200412 2,014,089
SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ILREaEEERas FERKRHER A A
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ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. &MIT R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERREREEREEK (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) nBEemkE (&
Liquidity tables (continued) THEER X (F&)
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than QOver undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year 12 year 2-5 years 5 years cash flows 31.12.2012
% RVIB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
RZZ-ZF
nETY AEEES TZAZH-A
CTIES LS 1228 155 BESF g HEEE
% ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
2012 5%
Non-derivative financial FiERMAR
liabilities
Trade payables EREHTE - 776,17 - - - 776,17 776,17
Bills payable EREE - 231,898 - - - 231,898 231,898
Other payables Ht MR - 322,438 - - - 322,438 322,438
Other payables for the acquisition of 5168 — M B2 A1 I
additional interest in a subsidiary ERfEMENE - 22,000 - - - 22,000 22,000
1,352,553 - - - 1,352,553 1,352,553
Fair value LFE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
is determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-ZT—=F+-F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

6.

EMIR (&)
DFE(E)

RiEEMBERKAREREL 2 FEE

T%TET/#%B/A{]—&;J Té%?ﬁ’\:ﬂﬁuﬁr
ENeRIAEST HRAIBEEH
NRFERESRE—E=f-

. F—BATENENETRI
A (3
EiE GRBE) B

s FEARVEAEDNREEK
BERER (AMERER) XE
& (AR ERITE) BRNEA
B (F—REFANRERRIN B
4o

s FEZARTEAEDNRMBER
- BREEXABEZHAR
mARABENTIZER (F
ABERBAE) GG -

31 December 2013

—2-=%+ZR=+-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
-8 - E=R - h
AR®TR AR®TT AE®TR AR®TT
Available-for-sale investments R ERE - 40,000 - 40,000
31 December 2012
ZE-Zf+ZA=T-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
5 Eul =8 @t
AREFTL AREFTL ARETTL ARETTL
Available-for-sale investments HRHERE - - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale investments is
determined by using income approach based on
discounted cash flow analysis with the expected interest
rates.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sale of single-use medical
device products, orthopaedic products and blood
purification products and operates in the PRC.

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into three operating divisions — single use
medical device products, orthopaedic products and
blood purification products. These divisions are the
basis of the internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker (Managing Director) in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

Principal activities of the Group’s operating segments
are as follows:

Single use medical -
device products

production and sale of single
use consumables such as
infusion sets, syringes,
blood transfusion sets and
blood bags.

Orthopaedic —  production and sale of

products orthopaedic products.
Blood purification —  production and sale of blood
products purification products and

related medical equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment revenues and results

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

7.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by operating segment:

SWBEH ()

2013 —2—-=%F
Single use
medical Blood
device Orthopaedic purification
products products products Eliminations Total
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
—RE
EHER ik 3214
E& FHER Em 5 &t
AR®TRE ARBTRE AER®TRT AR¥®TRT AR%TR
Revenue &
External sales INERSHE 3,546,077 505,947 561,286 - 4,613,310
Inter-segment sales B EEE 3,373 - 864 (4,237) -
Total At 3,549,450 505,947 562,150 (4,237) 4,613,310
Segment profit paR=ibigl 765,201 257,264 14,863 - 1,037,328
Unallocated expenses AAERE (372)
Unallocated other income, ADBEEMEA W& R
gain and losses E#E 762
Bank interest income |ITFBBA 5,947
Interest on available AHHERERS
for sale investments 576
Share of profit of EEEERAEF
joint ventures 2,820
Share of profit of associates [EEEE AR T 62,325
Loss on disposal of HE—HMBER
an associate GOEEPS (565,232)
Profit before taxation A A A 544,154

Inter-segments sales are charged at prevailing market

rates.
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ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Inter-segments sales are charged at prevailing market
rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of expenses, other
income, gains and losses of the corporate function,
share of profit (loss) of joint ventures, share of profit
of associates and loss on disposal of an associate. This
is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. FEPEHE (B)
Segment revenues and results (continued) PBERREE (E)
2012 —E——F
Single use Blood
medical device Orthopaedic purification
products products products Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—RH
FREE miRF
Em BRER En BR s
AREFT ARETR AREFT AREFT ARETT
Revenue Y
External sales M E 3,063,636 223,015 402,464 - 3,689,115
Inter-segment sales AP HBHE 9,817 - 535 (10,352) -
Total At 3,073,453 223,015 402,999 (10,352) 3,689,115
Segment profit 78 H 783,964 93,380 25,525 - 902,869
Unallocated expenses RAERX (144)
Unallocated other income, RAEEMBA Wk
gain and losses BB 54,969
Share of loss of joint ventures EiEaEnrR (4,401)
Share of profit of associates FEREE D RR 172,882
Profit before taxation BR B A 7 1,126,175

NE D BHEEHRRRITHEE -

REDHNSABRAREE S5
B AR - 2 80 N 45 & 53 26 A Bk
B M) RET KBS EAdUA
EEBENKEMER EBHEZ
~EDE A (ER) BEBZ R RE
MR b ERE AR BE-
RAETRELERRERERD N
RAFHEHNVAESA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 EHZ =%

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

7.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

SWBEH ()

B B R &t

—=FTZAST-ALFE

liabilities by operating segment: (ERUNN
2013 —E2—-Z=F
Single use
medical Blood
device  Orthopaedic  purification
products products products  Consolidated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
—-RH
ERER iib:3:1(4
ER BHER Em =8
ARRTR AB®TR AE®TR ARRTR
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 5,673,857 724,994 1,461,448 7,860,299
Interests in an associate it il YN £ 128,458
Interests in joint ventures XN 107,277
Available-for-sale investments REERE 40,000
Investment properties Ramx 10,109
Deferred tax assets BEEHBEE 22,834
Pledged hank deposits RERETER 143,496
Bank balances and cash BOEBRRES 2,975,623
Consolidated assets GREE 11,288,096
Liabilities A
Segment liabilities DE=EE 1,510,442 156,589 536,133 2,203,164
Other payable relating to the acquisiton ~ EWE—FIHBLA A EIMER
of additional interest in a subsidiary BEHHEMENTE
(note 26) (fit326) 22,000
Consolidated liabilities GEERE 2,225,164
SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR mEEERAS2 FEMRHER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z

—ZEFZASt—ALLER

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. FWEH (8
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) SHEERAR (&)
2012 —E—_F
Single use Blood
medical device Orthopaedic purification
products products products Consolidated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
— it
FHER miEFt
ER BRER Ef A
AREFTL AREFTL ARETFTL ARETTL
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 4,731,084 641,785 1,052,013 6,424,882
Interests in an associate R-EBERAER 2,525,106
Interests in joint ventures REENRER 104,457
Investment properties Banz 10,597
Deferred tax assets RIEHESE 24,402
Pledged bank deposits BRETER 91,546
Bank balances and cash ROEHLR S 1,297,856
Consolidated assets GREE 10,478,846
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities AHEE 1,202,732 189,791 143,908 1,536,431
Other payable relating to the acquisiton ~ 2WE—RINBARENMER
of additional interest in a subsidiary BEMEMERSTE
(note 26) (Mi7E26) 22,000
Consolidated liabilities GAERE 1,558,431
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances EESH BN HRBNDEE

and allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than investment properties, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, deferred tax

assets, available-for-sale investments,

IREY B R

s FMBEENH

CER=ZDE

interest in

joint ventures and interests in associates; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than other payables relating to the
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. FEPEHE (B)
Other segment information Hfth 5 8B &
2013 —2-=5
Single use
medical Blood
device  Orthopaedic  purification
products products products Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
-k
ERER il 3214
ER BHER ER &t

AE®TR AE®TR ARRTR AE®TR

Amounts included in the measure of HESBRNASTEER

segment profit or segment assets: JEst B
Additions to property, plant and equipment  #E9% BE LR E 587,900 45,595 314,539 948,034
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REGHEE 16,002 261 5,948 22,211
Release of prepaid lease payment i EEEANEAIE 8,869 193 1,986 11,048
Amortisation of intangible assets BREERH 1 3,114 - 3,115
Depreciation of property, nE BEREENE

plant and equipment 114,858 23,118 46,498 184,474
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BE REERS

plant and equipment (266) (5) (1,157) (1,428)
Research and development expenditure ikdah 151,955 38,731 18,235 208,921
Government grant TR (1,541) (3,480) (2,676) (7,697)
Rebate of value added tax (“VAT") BERER (38,371) - - (38,371)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR ESEEERSH F&m
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ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. #EEH (&)
Other segment information (continued) Hth3WEHE (E)
2012 —E——F
Single use Blood
medical device Orthopaedic purification
products products products Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
— ik
FREE m&F
Em BRER Ef Rt
ARBTL ARBTL ARETFT ARETL
Amounts included in the measure of FENPRNESHEER
segment profit or segment assets: JEE TR
Additions to property, plant and equipment  #T291%  E L& & 586,338 49,253 229,243 864,834
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REGEE 1,415 (1,804) 5,957 5,568
Release of prepaid lease payment ERfLAZEE 7,944 193 1,854 9,991
Amortisation of intangible assets BRAESZE 1 3,114 - 3,115
Depreciation of property, nE BEREENE
plant and equipment 88,821 20,942 15,320 125,083
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, LENE BERRE (hE)FE
plant and equipment (157) 116 28 (13)
Research and development expenditure i 128,764 29,605 12,218 170,587
Government grant B (3,611) (5,983) (2,464) (12,058)
Rebate of VAT BERRR (42,333) - - (42,333)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE

D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. oEEHE (&)
Revenue from major products FEERKR
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—®$—= —ET-_F

ARBTRET AR®TRT

Sale of single use medical device HE - AMEEABEREM
products
— Infusion sets —HR e
— Syringes —E 5128
— Pre-filled syringes — B 7 E 51 25
— Needles — &t & m
- Blood bags and sampling — I £ &Y i N BR M0 2 o
products
- PVC granules —PVCHL R}
— Other products —HMEm
Sale of orthopaedic products HEBREM®

Sale of blood purification products 3 6 MR F AL E o

Information about major customers

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of
total sales of the Group for both years.

Geographical segment

The Group’s operations, assets and most of the
customers are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no
geographical analysis of non-current assets and
customers is presented.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR ESEEERSH F&m

1,254,165 1,129,038

595,022 530,805
209,575 158,586
722,304 612,085
318,306 272,989

74,421 67,455
372,284 292,678
505,947 223,015
561,286 402,464

4,613,310 3,689,115

FEEFRMAH

PRREFEAN BEE -—FFHEE
BN EEAEEEN10% -

I & 3B

AEENRERK BEMAHD
BEPHNFE - Fit - BAZ53F
MBEEREPHME D -

==
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HttlgA - WRKREIR

2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—= —E—F
ARBTRE AR®ETFT
Rebate of VAT (i) HEBERG) 38,371 42,333
Government grant (i and iii) BKR 8 B Cii R iii ) 7,697 12,058
Bank interest income RITH B WA 5,947 20,488
Rental income (note 31) HEWA (H5E31) 1,753 2,573
Net exchange (loss) gain N (B8R ke 558 (46,050) 29,719
Interest on available for sale AIHEERER S
investments 576 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BFE MR B
plant and equipment 1,428 13
Others EHAb 762 565
10,484 107,749
Note: =

As Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company Limited (“Jierui”)
was recognised as a “Social Welfare Entity”, the Tax Bureau in
Weihai granted a rebate of the value added tax paid by Jierui
with effect from 1 May 1999 on the basis of “payment first
then rebate”. Pursuant to Caishui [2007] No.92 issued by the
State Council, with effect from 1 July 2007, Jierui was granted
a rebate of value added tax determined with reference to the
number of staff with physical disability. For each staff with
physical disability, six times of the minimum salary approved by
the local government in Weihai is granted to Jierui as rebate
of value added tax but subject to an annual maximum limit of
RMB35,000 per staff with physical disability.
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ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #EZ-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(continued)

During the year, government grants of RMB4,585,000
(2012: RMB4,584,000) in aggregate were awarded to the
Group mainly for specific research and development projects
completed during the year ended 31 December 2013 and
were recognised as income when the government grants were
received. The detail are as follows:

)

Pursuant to the Notice on the Weihai Science and
Technology Development Plan for the Year 2012
Lukeguizi [2012] No. 101 issued by the Department
of Science and Technology and Department of
Finance, the Company received a government grant of
RMB3,000,000.00 for the purpose of the Titanium Alloy
Locking Plate Project. It was recognised as income during
the year ended 31 December 2013 when the government
grants were received.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, other
subsidies of RMB1,585,000 (2012: RMB2,714,000) was
awarded to the Group by Bureau of Finance of Weihai
High-tech District and are recognised as income during
the year ended 31 December 2013 when the government
grants were received.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the release
of government grants related to assets amounting to
RMB3,112,000 (2012: RMB7,474,000) is recognised as other
income (note 29).

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR EsEEE

8. HMgA WRREIR (&)

FRN AEERRBE-ZT—=F
+ZAZ+—BLEFEEERANETE
MEEEFTEEEHBRTHIAR
#4,5850007C (ZE——F: AR
4,584,000t ) + I 7 U BB AT 6 Bh B
R AWNA -

1) REWLESERRE O KRB
BEME QONEREERER
MERRBME) (BRET
[2012]1015% ) XX 14 + AR R R UL E
KESHTEREE BNEMAR
#3,000,0007T ° BX AT #5 Bh 7Y &
E-F—=F+=-A=+—H
FREE THRBEEEREKR
]\o

2)  ANEEWREBIEE TS H
ZRIBAEMBTEBAR
#51,585,0000T (ZZE— =4 : A
R ¥2,714,0007T) ° BUF B
HEz—ZT—=F+=-A=+—H
FREE TRRSEEREIR
)\o

REBEZE_T—=F+=_A=+—H1L
FEN BEREBEENBRNHOAR
#£3112,000 (ZE——F: ARW
7,474,0007T ) R B EH Uk A (B 52
29) °

SAFHAERNERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEHF
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—$—= —T—ZF
ARBTRE ARETT
Imputed interest expenses on H N RIBZ HEEF B
other payable - 555
Interest on borrowings wholly AR A FANBHEENRT
repayable within five years EEHNE 16,275 4,476
Less: Amount capitalised in B ERIEBERENR
construction in progress (7,318) (353)
8,957 4,678

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying

FRERMEZEERARTIN —RE
EREL TRBAEREEMX

a capitalisation rate of 6% (2012: 2.67%) per annum to CEEER K% (ZE——F:
expenditure on qualifying assets. 267% )t E -
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. i RAX
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—= —E-F
AR®TRT ARETT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REEMEH 154,907 138,450
Deferred taxation (note 28) EEFIE (Ff5E28) 1,568 (8,645)
156,475 129,805

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law"”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of PRC subsidiaries is 25%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-ZT—=F+-F=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The Company, Jierui, Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic
Device Company Limited (“Weigao Ortho”) and Weihai
Weigao Blood Purification Products Company Limited
("Weigao Blood”) were recognised as Shandong
Province New and High Technical Enterprises (LI & 5
F T2 ) from the year 2011 to 2013. In accordance
with the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau of the Ministry
of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential Treatment
Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and High
Technical Enterprise was subject to income tax at a tax
rate of 15%. The directors of the Company expect that
the Company, Jierui, Weigao Ortho and Weigao Blood
can satisfy all current criteria and so will highly probable
be recognised as Shandong Province New and High
Technical Enterprises in 2014.

Jierui has been recognised as a “Social Welfare Entity”
and pursuant to Caishui [2007] No. 92 issued by the
State Council, with effect from 1 July 2007. Jierui is
subject to a statutory tax rate but an amount equivalent
to the total salaries paid to staff with physical disability
is further deducted from the taxable income of Jierui
and the rebate of value added tax is exempted from
the PRC income tax. Jierui is subject to income tax at a
tax rate of 15%. The tax charge provided for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 were made after
taking these tax incentives into account.

No provision of Hong Kong taxation has been made
for Weigao International Medical Company Limited and
Wego Medical Holding Company Limited as they did
not have assessable profit in Hong Kong during both
years

No provision of overseas taxation has been made for
Weigao Medical (Europe) Company Limited, Wellford
Capital Limited and Weigao Medical Germany GmbH as
they did not have assessable profit during both years.

10. iR RAX (&)

ARE B IUREESERM A
R (TREER]) MBS M
B CHBBRAR (TESMA])
ERRR_—_T— —FEE_FT—=
FEINRESHRMEE - RIE A
BHBEREEERBBLEMSHR
ETEIERRNAM)  SH¥xd
EARIS%REHANAER AR
REHARR]  Bin - BEE R R
SMBERTEAERFERE K
LB E AT RE RN — T — R
RURESHRMEE-

BInEERAE [ HEeRALE] I
B BT e 2 B R (2007) &
NHEXH H_ZTZTLFELA—H
iR BRI INBRETE R R HF - B8
ERNINTFREEIFCABE S
it — 2 B RISA BRI A F
B MEERERNEFBEAEH
¢m@ %%M&w%mﬁﬁﬁﬁ

EH-BE2-_ZE—=FE_F—=
¢+7H7+ B IFFE 2 Fiia#
HERBEZEMBEREMIEL -

BEARSERERER AR ME
SERERBRARNEENIANE
HEE REASMEARSERER
3 4 & AR A 4 A o

BMESREEEE (BN ERA
Wellford Capital Limited X & = EQ?%
BE (EE) AR A RIKEINGIRIE
LEE REAMTFANRKSILEAE
R g ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

—ZEFZASt—ALLER

10. iR RAX (&)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit REER X HEGE 2 EBARE
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and EF'E’J/ﬁni“'JiTEEZZDT-
other comprehensive income as follows:
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB’000
2= —T——F
ARBTFRE ARKTET
Profit before taxation B 75 Al s A 544,154 1,126,175
Taxation at the domestic income BIS%BEANFTEMEEE
tax rate of 15% (2012: 15%) ME(ZZ——F: 15%) 81,623 168,926
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss of &1 £ [l %'J“%ﬁ‘i'f (g A1)
joint ventures EREONETE (423) 660
Tax effect of share of profit of FEAG Bt & R Bl 20k A B9 B 75
associates Ta (9,349) (25,932)
Tax effect of income not taxable MMM S BHARRBALZ
for tax purpose Mg & (5,756) (10,861)
Additional tax benefit in research and #f 2k K ~ ZASNE 7518 =
development cost (note) (HFEE) (14,554) (11,703)
Additional tax benefit to HERNERBZBEINHBESR
a social welfare entity (4,675) (4,407)
Utilisation of estimated tax losses BAMEARERN(EE A
previously not recognised & 18 (43) (38)
Utilisation of deductible temporary PRBAEFERERITEN
difference previously not TrREER
recognised (875) (59)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIER KT IBE BRI S 2 5,879 1,316
Tax effect of expenses not ?ﬁﬁéﬂ‘kﬁﬁi—T—Hﬁ?ﬂ 75
deductible for tax purpose AxXH M2 11,952 11,527
Tax effect of loss on disposal of & — S A a A
an associate not deductible EBENHRGEE
for tax purpose 84,785 -
Effect of differential tax rate on TREMEHAEE L
the Group 7,911 376
Taxation A 156,475 129,805

Note: Additional tax allowance was granted by the PRC tax

P& -

authority in respect of the research and development cost
of RMB97,027,000 (2012: RMB78,020,000) incurred in new

products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M A

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EHZ =%

M. FTEERF

—=FTZAST-AILFE

2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—£-= —T—CZF
ARBTRE ARETT
Profit for the year has been arrived NEF [ m F &R (BT A)
at after charging (crediting): 3B B BESC:
Allowances for bad and doubtful RIBREE
debts 22,211 5,568
Amortisation of intangible assets | & EHH
(included in administration (BRERITERAZYF)
expenses) 3,115 3,115
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM N2 3,140 3,046
Depreciation of property, M- HWEMEETE
plant and equipment 184,474 125,083
Depreciation of investment properties & & ¥ E 372 144
Prepaid lease payments charged FEiEmRAMRE
to profit or loss B A ERIE 11,048 9,991
Rental payments in respect of KA ‘Eﬂ’ﬂﬂiﬁi
premises under operating leases 9,593 10,234
Research and development MREREXH (B
expenditure (including staff BIKARARE
costs of RMB82,966,000 (2012: 82,966,0007T
RMB68,335,000) ——fF:
AR #68,335,0007T) ) 208,921 170,587
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAERIHFERAE
an expense 1,886,444 1,576,695
Staff costs, including directors’ and BIKA (B
supervisors’ remuneration EEREEHFM)
— Retirement benefits scheme — iR FIET B 5K
contributions 180,033 154,842
— Salaries and other allowances — e MHEMER 626,169 493,204
Total staff costs BT AL 806,202 648,046
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - B MBI =
plant and equipment (1,428) (13)
SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ILREaSBEERas FERKRHER A A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A HRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

Supervisors are the members of the supervisory
committee of the Company.

The emoluments of directors and supervisors during the
year are analysed as follows:

1N.EF5 -ESRESFM

EEREEHS

FR - EFLEFOMEOTOT

2013 2012
8-z S
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
and other schemes and other schemes
Fee  allowances contributions Total Fee allowances  contributions Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FHR ey 3l HHR RIVER
e R R HEER at Be g R &t
AERTT AEBTT AEBTT AERTT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Chief Executive and director ~ fTREHHES
Mr. Zhang Hua Wei REREE 1,159 7 1,166 - 1,301 7 1,308
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Wang Yi THEE 954 7 961 - ,092 7 1,099
Mr. Gong Jian Bo (appointed on SHREE(RZF-ZF
18 March 2013) =RTN\BEZH) 900 - 900 - - - -
Mr. Xia Lie Bo (appointed on BilREE (RZF—=F
18 March 2013) At/ \BEZE 666 5 671 - - - -
Mr. Wu Chuan Ming (resigned on ~~ SEEEE(R=F—=F
27 December 2012) TZAZHLERE) - - - - 433 5 438
Mr. Miao Yan Guo (resigned on HEEAAE(RZF-2F
27 December 2012) TZAZHLERE) - - - - 416 5 a1
Mr. Wang Zhi Fan (resigned on TEERE(RZS-2F
27 December 2012) TZRZT+BEE) - - - - 364 5 369
2,520 12 2,532 - 2,305 22 2327
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Chen Xue Li REMEE - - - - - - -
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua ARERL - - - - - - -
Mr. Li Bing Yung (resigned on RARE(R-2-2%
27 December 2012) +ZAZTHAEML) - - - - - - -
Mr. Jean-Luc Butel (resigned on Jean-Luc Butel £ &
7 March 2012) (R=Z-Z%
ZAtRER) - - - - - - -
Mr. Christopher J. 0'Connell Christopher J. 0'Connell % &
(appointed on 21 May 2012 and (R=E-ZF
resigned on 1 July 2013) RAZ+-HEZf
YR-F-=F
tA-REfE) - - - - - - -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 4§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VN

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

1N.EF-ESRESFMH (&)

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

(continued)

EEREEMe (5)

2013 2012
-2-= —EBCf
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
and other schemes and other schemes
Fee  allowances contributions Total Fee allowances  contributions Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FHR anmd HHR RIER
e H R i i3 & we E e FEES @t
ABBTT AEBTT AEBTT ABBTRT AREFT ARETFT ARETR AREFT
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Lo Wai Hung EREEE 9% - - 9% 97 - - 97
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong ik n - - n 72 - - 7
Mr. Li Jia Miao FREAE n - - 7 7 - - 7
Mrs. Wang Jin Xia THRERT n - - 72 44 - - 44
Mr. Luan Jian Ping (resigned on SEYRE(RZT-—2F
15 March 2012) ZATRERE) - - - - 18 - - 18
312 - - 312 303 - - 303
Supervisors EE
Mr. Long Jing (appointed on EERE(R-E-ZF
18 March 2013) =Rt)\BEZH) - 457 4 461 - - - -
Mr. Miao Hai Sheng (resigned on &4 %4E (R-F-ZF
21 January 2013) —AZT-HEf) - - - - - 325 5 330
Ms. Bi Dong Mei* BRigR L - - - - - - - -
Ms. Chen Xiao Yun* RRERL - - - - - - - -
= 457 4 461 - 305 5 330
312 4,136 23 441 303 3,931 34 4,268
# The two supervisors worked for Weigao Holding since 2012, # MAEEEE _Z-—_FREBNES

and the salaries and other allowances and retirement benefits
schemes contributions were paid by Weigao Holding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’' AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2012: two) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the

disclosure above. The emoluments of the remaining two
(2012: three) individual were as follows:

1N.EF-ESRESFMH (&)

&Sl &

AEBRUSREMEALH =4
TE-CF MABIR/KARAE
= REOMEFBER EXRE-

Salaries and other benefits

¥ MEMRET

Their emoluments were within the following band:

Nil to HKD 1,000,000

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000

£ %1,000,000/% 7T
1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T

During the two years ended 31 December 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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2013 2012

RMB’'000 RMB'000

—2—-= —E-_F

ARBTR AR¥T

1,682 2,430
RENM S HBENT

2013 2012

No. of No. of

employees employees

—g-—-= —T-_F

ER AR BB AR

- 1

2 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. 1k 2
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
—_E—= —E -
ARBTRE AR®ETFT
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ FAERAED KA E
during the year:
2013 Interim — RMB0.029 (2012: —E——FhHEREER
interim dividend — RMB0.033) AR ¥0.0297T
per share (ZE—ZF:-HFHRE
0.0337T) 129,815 147,720
2012 Final - RMB0.033 (2012: —E——F KRR E TR
2011 final dividend — RMB0.03) AR#0.0337C
per share (Z=——%F:
— T —FREPKRE
Fix AR®0.037T) 147,720 134,291
277,535 282,011

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 of RMBO0.031 (2012: RMBO0.033) per share has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR B s5EEE

RBEHRE EFEERENTEHE
—E-=F+ZA=+—HILEE
FARHREESRARK0.0317T (=
T——F: AR¥00337T) o2&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 8KR2%
The calculation of the basic earnings per share RERESHE AARHE AEML
attributable to owners of the Company for the each of BREXRZNTIEE TS E&E
reporting period is based on the following data: "
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000

—EB—=F —T——-F
ARBTRE ARETT

Earnings a7
Profit for the year attributable to RABIHEER AL F AT
owners of the Company 387,984 996,486
2013 2012
‘000 ‘000
—®—= —ET-_F
TR TR
Number of shares B8 B
Weighted average number of shares  StEtEEFREARAF M= B
for the purpose of basic earnings A& 17 hn#E 5 8K
per share 4,476,372 4,476,372
No diluted earnings per share is presented because HARRAFES E—FEHEE
no potential ordinary shares were outstanding in the EETERRRD SR EZIE

current year or in the prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. K BERER
Furniture,
fixtures
Construction Plant and Motor and office
In progress Buildings machinery vehicles  equipment Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
&
BE&ER
EBIR BEY BERES RE WOBRE by

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTLE  ARETR ARBTT ARBTT

cosT B
At 1 January 2012 R-B--£-f-8 1,485,741 542,961 738,247 46,7192 96,807 2,910,548
Additions HNE 675,471 5,531 113,869 9,529 60,434 864,834
Transfer L1 (203,853) 48,320 148,912 652 5,969 -
Transfer to investment properties ERZERENE - (9,934) - - - (9,934)
Disposals HE - - (9,944) (3,796) (1,987) (15,727)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—#+-A=1-H 1,957,359 586,878 991,084 53,177 161,223 3,749,721
Additions HE 740,706 1,45 85,498 11,787 108,798 948,034
Transfer E (932,755) 789,837 108,907 745 33,266 -
Transfer from investment ERERENE

properties - 783 - - - 783
Disposals HE - (1,091) (1,191) (2,112) (14,571) (18,965)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=#+-A=1+-H 1,765,310 1,377,652 1,184,298 63,597 288,716 4,679,573
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 January 2012 R-B--£-p-8 2,314 99,630 247,634 24,908 65,570 440,056
Provided for the year FRAE - 20,926 73,299 7,505 23,353 125,083
Eliminated on disposals REEREH - - (7,053) (2,936) (1,025) (11,014)
Transfer to investment properties BB ZHENE - (2,653) - - - (2,653)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-fA=+-H 2314 117,903 313,880 29,477 87,898 551,472
Provided for the year ERNEE - 29,631 100,560 8,263 46,020 184,474
Eliminated on disposals RN E R H - (39) (538) (2,128) (2,710) (5,415)
Transfer from investment ERERENE

properties - 667 - - - 667
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=#+-A=1-H 2,314 148,162 413,902 35,612 131,208 731,198
CARRYING AMOUNTS BEE
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=#+-A=1-H 1,762,996 1,229,490 770,39 27,985 157,508 3,948,375
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—F+-A=+-H 1,955,045 468,975 677,204 23,700 73,325 3,198,249
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(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress are depreciated
on a straight-line basis after taking into account their
estimated residual values and at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 3.2-95%
Plant and machinery 9.5%
Motor vehicles 19%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 19 -47.5%

The buildings of the Group are situated in the PRC and
the leasehold land is under medium-term lease.

The construction in progress represented buildings,
plant and machinery, and fixtures under construction
which are situated in the PRC.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has no pledged
buildings to banks to secure borrowings granted to the
Group (2012: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% BERERR (&)

EimmE - BENREEE (£
TAERRON) KB AR RLET AE (A ETF
SREER B IIFRFE:

BEY) 3.2—9.5%
B = Mo i 2% 9.5%
B 19%
FE-BEREER

PWRAERME 19—47.5%

AEEWNZEYHLRPE mHE
AR HIBEORE -

ERTREBUNTFEOERFRE
Y BEEEELREERE -

WZE—=F+-_fF=+—H K
SEBEGEEYE R TIRITE
AERFAEENEZRNEE (==
——F &) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties of
approximately RMB13,142,000 as at 31 December 2013
(2012: RMB13,776,000) has been determined by the
directors.

The valuation performed by the directors was arrived
by reference to recent market prices of properties in
the same location and with similar conditions. There
has been no change from the valuation technique used
in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

The fair value of Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2013 is categorized within level 2 at the fair
value hierarchy.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR B s5EEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REME
RMB’'000
ARET T
COST &
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZT——F—HF—H 4,524
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EE G W%  HE L &R E 9,934
At 31 December 2012 R_E—Z_F+_-_H=+—H 14,458
Transfer to property, plant and equipment  EEZWE  BE L& E (783)
At 31 December 2013 R_TE—=%+_"A=+—H 13,675
DEPRECIATION heE
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZT——F—HF—H 1,064
Provided for the year FRE 144
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B S Y% B E L& & 2,653
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-H=+—H 3,861
Provided for the year FABEE 372
Transfer to property, plant and equipment HEBEEYE BWEMRE (667)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+ZH=+—H 3,566
CARRYING VALUES iR T B
At 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+_-H=+—H 10,109
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-_HA=+—H 10,597

REEBREYER T —=F+=
A=+ —HWAFEHNAEARE
13,142,00070 (= ZE——4F : ARKE
13,776,0007T) - Z AV EHESE
T

T FEITH A E T AR U B A8
REETHEOANTEESRE -
REFRANGBERMLEZLE -
REEMENRFER MENK
BREERAESERKBZMAE-

REBREMENR _T—=F+=
A=+—2RAFEDRAFERER
DEABE Mo

moTEM

=z

%10 B R R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at 5% per annum.

The carrying value of investment properties shown

16. BEWE (&)

R EMERE SR ENFERSY% T
VAT EE ©

LRt iR EMENRRERRZ

above comprise of buildings erected on: T 3 E 2 AR
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—F—= —E-F
+=A T—A
=+—8 =+—H
ARBFRE ARETET
Land in PRC 7O AR B Y £ 4
Medium term lease FHEAZE 49 10,109 10,597
17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. AT HERTK
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—g-—= —T—_F
+=A += A
=+—8 =+—H
ARBTFRE ARKTET
The Group's prepaid lease payments AEEBE/TBENEEREBRIE:
comprise:
Leasehold land in PRC RAEHEE -
Medium-term lease HHRF A9 526,176 471,791
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLEREB DA
Current portion (note 23) BVEAER 9 (B 5E23) 11,483 10,271
Non-current portion FEBN AR &L 514,693 461,520
526,176 471,791

The leasehold land in PRC is held under medium-term
lease of 43-50 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—-Z—=F+-A=+—HILtFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B & &
Registration Patent
rights rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
468 2L st
ARBTT AR®TT AR%Tx
CosT 2%
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——%—Hf—H 31,144 - 31,144
Additions N - 5,200 5,200
At 31 December 2012 RZE——f+=-A=+—H 31,144 5,200 36,344
Additions NE _ _ _
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+_-A=1+—H 31,144 5,200 36,344
AMORTISATION i
At 1 January 2012 RZZ——F—HF—H 13,409 - 13,409
Charge for the year FRAX 3,115 - 3,115
At 31 December 2012 RZE——%+-A=+—H 16,524 - 16,524
Charge for the year FRAX 3,115 - 3,115
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-"A=+—H 19,639 - 19,639
CARRYING VALUES FmE
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F+_A=1+—H 11,505 5,200 16,705
At 31 December 2012 RZE—-%+-H=+—H 14,620 5,200 19,820
The registration rights were acquired on acquisition of TP U5 i B B8 % R BSf () 98 37 58 = U5 BX
subsidiaries from independent third parties. They are FELE - FLEMOFHBEE
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 BRATUABESE
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

19. REELTIHER

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

RMB’'000 RMB'000

—®—= —ET-_F

+=AR += A

=+—H =+—H

ARBTRE AR®ETIT

Cost of unlisted investment, at cost  3F_F TR E K A

(B AGTE 117,990 117,990
Share of post-acquisition loss FEAG U BB 12 B 18 (10,713) (13,533)
107,277 104,457

Details of the Group's joint ventures as at 31 December

2013 and 2012 are as follows:

RZBE—=FR-_F——F+=A1
Zt+t—H AEEMNAE QAN

(ERUNNE
Place of Proportion of
Form of incorporation nominal value of
business or registration/ registered capital
Name structure operation held by the Group Principal activities
2013 2012
F&HE
FEM AL HHRMER
£ RERBEA B EEHE BEFmELH FERE
—Z-=§ —T-—-f

Weigao Nikkiso (Weihai) Incorporated PRC 51% 51% Manufacture, sale and

Dialysis Equipment Co., Ltd. after-sale service of

("Weigao Nikkiso") (i) Nikkiso technology-

based medical products

BE B g% () EMke EA 1A h it HERERRE

BRRA ([EEEHE]D) () A B SR T BE

BEHMm

Weigao Terumo (Weihai) Incorporated PRC 50% 50% Production and sales of

Medical Products Co., Ltd. medical products

("Weigao Terumo") (ii)
HEaRAX (B8 BEEm BRIz th EERHEREZM

BRAR (TR=EEBEX]) (i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 4§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A HmARNE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Note:

i Pursuant to the terms in the Weigao Nikkiso Co-operation
Agreement between the shareholders, the registered capital
of USD5,610,000 (equivalent to RMB37,990,000) was
contributed by Weigao Blood and USD5,390,000 (equivalent to
RMB36,500,000) was contributed by Nikkiso Company Limited
(BARB#EKRK24) (“Nikkiso”). Under the Memorandum
and Article Weigao Nikkiso, Weigao Blood is entitled to 50%
voting right and has 51% rights to the net assets of Weigao
Nikkiso, thus investment in Weigao Nikkiso is classified as
investment in joint venture.

ii Weigao Terumo was established on 6 December 2012. Pursuant
to the terms in the Weigao Terumo Agreement between the
shareholders, the registered capital of RMB160,000,000 is to be
contributed by Weigao Blood and Terumo (China) Investment
Company Limited (@& (FE)IEE AR LA A) ("Terumo”).
Under the Memorandum and Article of Weigao Terumo, Weigao
Blood is entitled to 50% voting right and has 50% rights to
the net assets of Weigao Terumo, thus investment in Weigao
Terumo is classified as investment in joint venture. As at 31
December 2013, Weigo Blood and Terumo have contributed
their respective share of registered capital of RMB80,000,000.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint ventures is set out below. The summarised
financial information represents amounts shown in
the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

19. REELTFIHER ()

Fi 3 :

i BIERRZEOES & B#ESER
HEVIEF - 5,610,000E T (FHER A
R#37,990,0007T) M E BB S
&+ & - 5,390,000% T (BBEHEH A
R#36,500,00070) KIFEME AR B AR
AfER et ([ARE])HE R
BESERENABERXERAR
A S MRS B = B 50% M
wERE WHEARS AREEEFEN
S51%ER - B R E B EENRED
HERAEARINERE -

ii BemZBERN _E——%+=-AXH
AL BB R 2 EA B SRR X
B AR 160,000,000t 89 5+
BEAERBSMENEBRX (FE)E
BEHRAR ([FEEK])LE - RIEE
BREBKNEGER AL A BA
BB EE B =TBK0%MIEE
B WHEERSFERXEEFHEMNS0%
R AR E S ERENRESER
REERRNTE RZE—=ZF+=
A=+—8 EBemB;FBHLXE D
EARSESERGEZEMERARE
80,000,0007T °

BERAEBASERANTBERE
ZHEIN T X -MBEEHFERER
BEAVHEHRSEARRNEGER
IR E LN ek o

Weigao Nikkiso BEH#R
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
—B—=F —ZT—=—F
+=A += A
=+—8H =+—H
ARBTRE AR®TFT
Current assets MENEE 79,457 59,114
Non-current assets EMEBEE 18,742 18,260
Current liabilities VnEB=NE (36,867) (29,418)

The above amounts of assets and Tt EENBESSE
liabilities include the following: BT

Cash and cash equivalents ReEEREEFEY 33,954 6,266

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR ESEEERSH T2 m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

19. REELTFIHER (8)

Weigao Nikkiso (continued) mE#®EK(E)
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
8BE S
—E—-= —E-CF
+=A T=-A
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEFE
ARBFRE ARKTET
Revenue WA 106,437 40,308
Profit for the year NEE A 13,376 8,629

The above profit for the year include the following:

EPRARFEE R BEMAT

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

RMB’'000 RMB'000

8E S

2= —E-_F

+=A T—-A

=+—8 =+—H

ILEE IEFE

ARBFRE ARETET

Depreciation and amortisation EREE 2,031 1,778
Interest income FE WA 33 99
Income tax expense FriSHi R = - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EHZ =%

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

—=FTZAST-AILFE
19. REELFHER (&)

Weigao Nikkiso (continued) mE#®EK (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial XXt 2 B IS E R RN R BT
information to the carrying amount of the interest in HEBERONRES El*%z%* 2 AR
Weigao Nikkiso recognised in the consolidated financial T {8 H) ¥ BR
statements:
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
=5 —_Z=T—_F
+=R +T—-A
=+—H =+—H
ARB®TRE ARETT
Net assets of Weigao Nikkiso Bim BA#E s BEFE 61,332 47,956
Proportion of the Group's ownership ANEERE S B #E ~
interest in Weigao Nikkiso P HERE 2R LE I 51 51
Carrying amount of the Group's AEBERBSAKERS 2
interest in Weigao Nikkiso FREE 31,279 24,457
Weigao Terumo BEaiEx
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—2-—-= —E-_F
+=A T=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFRE AR¥KTET
Current assets MENE BE 145,085 80,000
Non-current assets EMBEE 9,429 -
Current liabilities VRN (2,517) -
The above amounts of assets and TEERBESSE
liabilities include the following: BEET:
Cash and cash equivalents ReEEREEFEY 93,439 80,000

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR ESEEERSH T2 m

145



146

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

19. REELTFIRHER (8)

Weigao Terumo (continued) BREERX (&)
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
gE BH=E
—g—= —T—_F
+=A +T=-A
=+—8H =+—H
ILFEE IEFE
ARBFRE AREKTET
Revenue WA - -
Loss for the year KEEEE (8,003) -
The above loss for the year include the following: it AREEEHEESFENT
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
gE BH=E
—8—-=F _—_T—_F
+=A +=-A
=+—H =+—H
ILFEE IEFE
ARBFRE AREKTET
Depreciation and amortisation EREE 105 -
Interest income B A - -
Income tax expense FriSHi A - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EHZ =%

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

20.

ARe B RAR M et

—=FEtZAST-ALEE
19. REELFHER (&)

Weigao Terumo (continued) BREEE® (8)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial EEat 2 B E R R A IS
information to the carrying amount of the interest in #Ei’%ﬁ&w?E’JEADZm?%EﬁDET w2 BR
Weigao Terumo recognised in the consolidated financial EEREER:
statements:
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—= —E—_F
+=AR +=A
=+-—H =+—H
ARBFRE ARETET
Net assets of Weigao Terumo BerBRkcEEFE 151,997 80,000
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBERESERXZ
interest in Weigao Terumo Fir 8 #E #E 25 b 1 50 50
Carrying amount of the Group's TEERBERTRXERZ
interest in Weigao Terumo FRAEE 75,998 80,000
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. RN ERFIMER
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
=5 —Z=T—_-F
ARBFRE ARKTET
Cost of listed investment in REtE R A2 EMIREKAR
associates - 2,276,200
Realised gain arising from P 37BN B E AR Y
establishing of an associate I8 U 5 72,314 72,314
Share of post-acquisition profit and 165 Y & 1 & & &2
other comprehensive income, net Hi2mEBA
of dividends received (BB WA & 56,144 176,592
128,458 2,525,106
Fair value of listed investment EmEREZRFE - 2,280,091
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(1

On 18 December 2008, the Company and Medtronic
International Limited (”Medtronic International”) entered
into an agreement in respect of establishing an entity (the
"Distribution JV”) in the PRC with a total registered capital
of RMB147,580,000 to undertake the sale and distribution
of orthopaedic medical device products in the PRC (the
“Distribution JV Agreement”).

The Distribution JV takes the form of a Sino-foreign co-
operative joint venture limited liability company.

Pursuant to the terms in the Distribution JV Agreement, the
registered capital of RMB147,580,000 were contributed by
Medtronic International while the Company is entitled to
49% voting right and is entitled to share 49% of the result of
Distribution JV since its incorporation.

The Company is entitled to share the remaining net assets
of the Distribution JV in the following percentage, when
the Distribution JV is dissolved under the agreement of the
Company and Medtronic International:

0 — 1 year since incorporation 10%
1 — 2 year since incorporation 25%
More than 2 years since incorporation 49%

On 3 December 2012, the Company and Medtronic
International entered into an agreement in respect of
liquidating and dissolving the Distribution JV and to terminate
the Distribution JV Agreement. As at 31 December 2013, the
liquidation process has not been completed.

On 21 November 2013, the Company entered into an
agreement to dispose of its interests in Biosensors International
Group Ltd (“Biosensors”) to CB Medical Holdings Limited.
The consideration was satisfied by cash amounted to
USD312,284,000 (equivalent to RMB1,911,053,000).
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20. R EATIMER ()

GES

(1

RZZEZENF+_AF+N\H &Q
& B2 Medtronic International Limited
([ Medtronic International J ) gt 5 B
LB ([DEEaE AR )Rk
(InEEERE]) HHEERAE
B AR A ARE147,580,0000T 0 JA
RPBEREHEERDHERIBERE

Eme

DHEABRBAPIIEIERERRE
ERBNTZHET

BESIHEALEHZNET FMER
A R #147,580,0007T 2 1 Medtronic
Internationali & - M A AR A #E »
HAEENA49%MRER W HED
EDHEEERR B RELEDN
49% o

oA & A a B AR F EMedtronic
InternationaltR & 758 E & - A QA
BEEBENATESEDEDHAZRA
MR N EEFE:

BRI ROE1F 10%
BRI R1Z=29F 25%
Bk Sz #E24E MA E 49%

R-ZE——&E+=-A=0 XAFAR
Medtronic International#t)3 & & 2 #k
DEEERAINEIEDHEEHER]
yhEo- R E—Z=ZFF+_A=+—
A BERRFHATRK

RZE—=F+—A=+—H £&2Q
AU HEABERIAREREER
BRAR([HEE])MERDE TCB
Medical Holdings Limited = X &% 8
1$312,284,000E T (HHERARYE
1,911,053,0007T ) XX +f »
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #ZE =% —

20. B ELTIRER ()

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation or

Form of business registration/

R-F-ZFR=-F——F1T-A
=+— B REEOBE DS

LI

Attributable equity
interest directly held

Name structure operation by the Company Principal activities
2013 2012
BMAIRER EAFEHEREN
£ EEREER EERE B 6 B 4 FERE
Zg-Z§ ~—T-—%
Medtronic Weigao Orthopaedic Incorporated PRC 49% 49% Sale and distribution of
Device Company Limited orthopaedic medical
device products
EHNBBEMERERLAF Bl e HERDHERBE
REBEEM
Biosensors International Group Ltd. Incorporated Bermuda (Listed - 21.5% Sale and distribution of heart
on Singapore medical device products
Exchange Ltd)
HEEREEERAR Bl BEE (R I0% HERDHOHER
RHMAER REBEER
AR ET)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information of Distribution JV shown below
has been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, and
the summarised financial information of Biosensors
shown below has been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

20. R EATIMER ()

Distribution JV - /NG

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

RMB’'000 RMB'000

—F—= —E-F

+=AR +=A

=+—-B =t+—F§

ARBTRT ARETT

Current assets mENE E 323,718 369,877
Non-current assets EMBEE 37,496 79,578
Current liabilities mEEaE (99,054) (176,101)
Year ended Year ended

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

RMB’'000 RMB'000

8F HE

—E—-=F —T——F

+=A +=A

=+—8H =+—H

ILEE IEFEE

ARBTRE AR®ETFT

Revenue A = 927,181
(Loss) profit for the year AKEE (FE) R (11,195) 85,933
Group's share of (loss) profit REEEMN (BE) R (5.486) 42,107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

20. B ELTIRER ()

Biosensors HE
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB'000 RMB’000
—g-=F _—_=T—_F
+=A += A
=+—8H =+—H
ARBTFRE ARETET
Current assets mEEE - 2,963,858
Non-current assets ERBEE - 8,239,317
Current liabilities nBaE - (341,573)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - (667,282)
Period
ended Year ended
21/11/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BE H=E
—F—= —E-F
+—A +=A
=+—B =f-F
1L EARS IEFE
AR®TRT ARETT
Revenue WA 1,544,663 2,111,771
Profit for the year/period REE/HARE R F 329,482 710,848
Share of profit before fair value &5 A B FHERE
adjustment 70,839 153,543
Amortisation of intangible Assets | EEEH (35,552) (48,207)
Adjustment on fair value of bonds EBAESH A FEMNAR - 3,670
Share of profit JEAG 5 A 35,287 109,006
Dilution gain recognised B RS s 32,524 21,769
Share of other comprehensive income & {f £ 4th 2 F W A (47,824) (4,847)
Group's share of profit and other REE,/HEAEE
comprehensive income of JEAE S E R AR
associates for the year/period i M) Fe B Ath 2 E A 19,987 125,928

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

Impairment testing on goodwill

As explained in note 4, the Group uses operating
divisions as the basis for reporting segment information.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to the following groups of cash
generating units ("CGUs"). The carrying amounts of
goodwill as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 and as
follows:

21. GOODWILL 21. &
RMB’000
AREFIT
CARRYING AMOUNTS R {E
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and W-_ZT——-F—H—H"
31 December 2013 -+ A=+—HEK
—E—=%+_-A=+—H 202,900

R ENR

BN AP  AEBFRLE D
HIERERESRERMER R
ETRENGR BERIEIAT
ReEXENM([REEEENM])
BRI -R—_TE—Z=Z=FR_T——F
+-A=1+—HB BEZEEEN
T

Goodwill
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000

me

=5 —ZT—_F
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRE ARBTET
Single use medical device products — R B SRR 28,934 28,934
Orthopaedic products 5 BHE m 173,966 173,966
202,900 202,900

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The management considers that groups of CGUs are
represented by different groups of subsidiaries for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z—=F+-_F=+—HILFE

21. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of single use medical device products have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. The
recoverable amount is based on the financial budget
approved by management for the next year and
extrapolates cash flows for the following four years
based on an estimated constant growth rate of 10%
(2012: 10%). This rate does not exceed the long-term
growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows is 15% (2012: 15%). A
key assumption for the value in use calculations is the
budgeted growth rate, which is determined based on
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of orthopaedic products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved
by management for the next year and extrapolates
cash flows for the following four years based on an
estimated constant growth rate of 20% (2012: 20%).
This rate does not exceed the long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows is 15% (2012: 15%). A key
assumption for the value in use calculations is the
budgeted growth rate, which is determined based on
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of the assumption would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of the above CGUs to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the above
CGUs, thus there is no impairment on goodwill.

21. 78 (8)

mERENR (E)

AMFEAERERSHRERCRSE
E%hﬁﬂZT%@@@EE@%
BEAEMEBEE JKEESENE
BEEMEZT— MEF%ﬁﬁ%
ABEME WIRI0% (ZT——_4%F:
10% ) M fE AT B I8 R R HEHT R K
MFEMREESRE - Z RN EBBHE
EMEMNRBPEER-BARER
EMAMNBE R A15% (ZT——
F:15%) FTEFRHEBCETER
REBEEERE DNERBERRR
EEEBYMGRERCBHMET -

ERERCREEEEMMARNZ
AREEENIRERAEENTED
#moT%@ %ua@ﬁm&z
—EAFEEMREESER Wik
m% T F:20%)MEE
BEEREEHARUENRE SN
EoREINBRBMAEMSH RS
EER-JEARESREMARLLE
?%w%(:;—_¢1mwoﬁ
EFHEBEE 2 TERRATEEER
EoNIRBAARRELAEEEY TS
BREHMERT -

ERERE AABR2ETLE
THEHFES AR S EEER
S REEEBL AT RO RS B
Ut 75 3 4 L1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+=-_A=+—HIEFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. 58

31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—= —E—-——-F
+=ZB=+—H +=-A=+—H
AR®TRT AREEF T
Raw materials Rk 151,275 149,607
Finished goods LA in 715,081 680,667
866,356 830,274
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. B EHIRR R A EKRIEA
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—= —E——F
+=ZBA=+—H +=-A=+—H
AR®TT AREFIT
Trade receivables FEUWE BRI 1,842,193 1,369,629

Less: Allowance for bad and o RIEEBR
doubtful debts (93,907) (84,835)
1,748,286 1,284,794
Bills receivable e E & 327,485 204,482
Other receivables H b i W 3k 18 44,905 33,905
Prepayments iCENE e 94,038 110,076

Other receivables H th & We sk IR

— receivable within one year — R —F A YR 1,750 7,500
Prepaid lease payments (note 17) FBfHEE B (HI7E17) 11,483 10,271
2,227,947 1,651,028

FrERKEEG KR /NEAR AR
Hf o

All the bills receivable will be matured within six month.

fE U E 5 AR 51 B 15 e U — A g
NAERIEAEAR®EA4,132,0007T
(Z=—=—F: AR®16,714,000
TL) R EFNIEAEIRE 28 KA
RERKEEE -

Included in trade receivables is an amount due from an
associate of RMB4,132,000 (2012: RMB16,714,000).
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 -
180 days to its trade customers. The following is an
aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date,
which approximated the goods delivery date, at the end
of the reporting period.

23. PRI 3R 2 IR % B H b FE Uy =R IR

(%)

AEELTEZEFFH90E180
AKZIEEH - HREBHRNEZH
(HEMXTAHERL) 27K EK
BSBER (BHBRERE) 2R
DT °

31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
—_Z£—= —ET——F

+=A=+—-B +-A=t+-F

AR®TTT AREFIT
0 to 90 days 0290k 942,730 749,000
91 to 180 days 91£180K 451,881 311,442
181 to 365 days 1812365k 277,395 189,267
Over 365 days 365K A £ 76,280 35,085
Trade receivables e E SRR 1,748,286 1,284,794

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed once a year.

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB353,675,000 (2012: RMB224,352,000) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the amounts
are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR B s5EEE

BEMETAHELA ARBEFGHE
EEFPHNEREERREREFEA
REE- AEEH XX P HRELF
B —FmE — IR

AEBRNEWE SRR EHRERIE
IREAE A ARK®353,675,0007T
—ET——F: AR™224,352,000
TT)REWERS  HERBRE B HE
H- RN EREETEERES
B2&BMR AW E - HAEEIL
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z

RE B R P AT

(continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

— =+ R=t+—HILFE
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. PRI R 2 IR ok B H b FE Uy =R IR
(%)

BEAERBRENEEE SRR

impaired: AR e
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—Z=f§ —E-CF
+=-A=+—H +=-A=+—H
AR®TR ARBTF T
181 to 365 days 181E365X 277,395 189,267
Over 365 days 365K A £ 76,280 35,085
353,675 224,352
The Group has made impairment allowances in full rEBEB—REAFMEBB=-FHE

for all receivables over 3 years because from historical
experience receivables past due beyond 3 years are

WIEREL 288 E AREBE
& ZEB A= FoEKER

generally not recoverable. OB BRI E o
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debt: RIZREHENE
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—E—-=F —F-—F
AR®TR ARETF T
Balance at beginning of year F A ER 84,835 90,636
Impairment losses recognised IR BRI R R E B 18
on receivables 21,977 5,568
Amounts written off 1 85 7% 1 Be U 8] B B8
as uncollectible (12,905) (11,369)
Balance at end of year FOREERR 93,907 84,835
Bills receivables of approximately RMB228,096,000 RZE—=F+-_HA=+—H A

(2012: RMB182,730,000) was endorsed with
recourse to third parties at 31 December 2013 and
corresponding trade payables of RMB228,096,000
(2012: RMB182,730,000) were included in the
consolidated statement of financial position accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M A

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and have no fixed term of repayment. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the amounts are
expected to be recovered in the next twelve months.
The ageing analysis of other receivables net of

(%)

allowance for bad and doubtful debts is stated as

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

23. PRI 3R 2 IR % B H b FE Uy =R IR

Hith R UK TR A A - 2 B M B
BEERXBM - ARBEZTRR %
EREBAHGER AL+ —EA AWK
(Bl o E i 8 Wk I8 (AR HIRR I AR 3
B RREDITZ25 T

follows:
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—g-—-= —T-_F
+=AR +=A
=+—8 =+—H
AR®TFRE ARETT
0 to 90 days 0F 90X 19,188 19,646
91 to 180 days 91£180K 3,917 3,209
181 to 365 days 181&365K 12,342 4,676
Over 365 days 365K 9,458 6,374
44,905 33,905
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debt: RIEEBRENEE:
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E-=F —_T——F
ARBTRT ARETIT
Balance at beginning of year FHER 1,617 1,617
Impairment losses recognised on LW KIB R B EEE
receivables 296 -
Amounts written off as uncollectible %4 & 7~ 7] U [B] &9 3% 18 (62) -
Balance at end of year FOREER 1,851 1,617

Receivables that were not impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default and with good credit quality.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AR

LR ek

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE=Z

—ZEFZASt—ALLER

23a.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

24.

25.

As at 31 December 2013, bills receivable with carrying
amount of RMB228,096,000 (2012: RMB182,730,000)
were endorsed to suppliers on a full recourse basis. As
the Group has not transferred the significant risks and
rewards relating to these bills receivable, it continues
to recognise the full carrying amount of the bills
receivable and the associated liabilities amounted to
RMB228,096,000 (2012: RMB182,730,000), being trade
payables. These financial assets are carried at amortised
cost in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2013, pledged bank balances
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure trade
facilities such as bills payable, borrowings and letter
of credit amounting to RMB143,496,000 (2012:
RMB91,546,000). The amount was classified as current
assets in accordance with the classification of these
trade facilities.

The pledged bank balances carry fixed interest rate
of 3.05% per annum as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
3.05%).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The deposits carry
interest rate of 0.35% (2012: 0.35%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #E—FT—=F+-A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

26. FE {158 2 MR °% B H i FE £+ R IR

BRBRERARNEZE2INENE
FRFAERE DT

31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
~—8—-=F —_T——-F
+=A += A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFRE AREKTET
0 to 90 days 0£90:X 612,063 619,810
91 to 180 days 91£180K 89,370 52,884
181 to 365 days 181E365XK 38,662 8,904
Over 365 days 365K E 11,320 8,251
Trade payables FEE 5 RN 751,415 689,849
Bills payable R ER 238,840 231,898
Advances from customers KEEPEBK 64,030 64,268
Other tax payables H &~ B 18 69,364 55,683
Consideration payable for the W Bg — BT B8 & R EB AN
acquisition of additional interest in EmEMNEARE
a subsidiary 22,000 22,000
Construction cost and retention BERAREMNRE
payable 102,138 86,368
Other payables H & 1~ 5RIB 499,996 322,438
1,747,783 1,472,504

The normal credit period taken for trade purchases is
90-120 days. All the bills payable will mature within six
months.

Included in trade payables are an amount due to fellow
subsidiaries of RMB8,141,000 (2012: RMB15,764,000),
an amount due to a jointly controlled entity of
RMB10,748,000 (2012: RMB12,440,000) and an
amount due to an associate of RMB67,035,000 (2012:
RMB114,102,000). The amounts are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2013, an amount due to
ultimate holding company of RMB11,691,000 (2012:
RMB4,819,000) was included in other payables as
current liabilities. The amount was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The amount was settled
during the year.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR B s5EEE
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EHRNAEBEERNRRZNEB A
Al A AR ¥S, 141,000 (=&
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BN —EHERZEHEERBARE
10,748,00070 ( —ZE——F : AR
12,440,00070) & FES — A BE &2
Al E A R#67,035,000L (=&
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ZEFBEAEEER 2ELREX

R {EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

27. BORROWINGS 278
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—®—= —ET-_F
+=A +T—A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFRE ARETET
Bank borrowings at variable-rate (i) & )F B F| X5 B AIRITE () 199,900 -
Borrowings from an other entity at e —FEMERBIREE
fixed-rate (ii) MR B RS K (i) 100,000 -
Bank borrowings obtained in relation  Ft B & & & I I EVS 89
to transferred receivables (i) 1T 18 (i) 100,000 -
399,900 -
Secured B - -
Unsecured 4K 1 399,900 -
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BERER T EREIEE -
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—®—= —ET-_F
+=A T—A
=+—H =+—H
ARBFRE ARETET
Within one year R—FR 300,200 -
More than one year, but not R —F LA BT B M
exceeding two years 200 -
More than two years, but not RMF A LB HEBAF
exceeding five years 99,500 -
399,900 -
Less: Amount due within one B AREB B &N —F
year shown under current LA A £ B ) /I8
liabilities (300,200) -
Amount due after one year shown PAEERBEE
under non-current liabilities R —F1& 2 R 58 99,700 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE T —=F+_A=+—HILFE

27 .fB® (&)

BORROWINGS (continued)

Note:

i As at 31 December 2013, the variable-rate borrowings carry
interest rates ranged from 6.00% to 6.15% per annum (2012:
nil).

ii As at 31 December 2013, the amounts represented borrowings
obtained from Chongging International Trust Company Limited.
The fixed-rate borrowings carry an interest rate 6.00% per
annum (2012: nil).

iii As at 31 December 2013, the amounts represented trade

receivables discounted to China Minsheng Bank Company
Limited. The discounted rate is 6.16% per annum (2012: nil).

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the deferred tax asset recognised and
movements thereon during the current reporting year:

GHE

ﬁA— —ZF+-A=+—8 " F8F
REFTENNEF6.00EZE6.15F 2
Fﬁﬂﬁ%li(:?—:i-ﬁ)ﬁ%o

R_E—=F+-_A=t+—H &#
HEEERREEARARDISHE
o [BTE R AE IR T F6.00E2 A F| x
(ZT—ZF E)Ft8-

R-ZE—=#+-_A=+—H &%
EEPBERERITERNDER AR
WEKRE SEH -BIRRATF6.16%
(ZE—=F:8|)-

28. BEEREA

BT T R T
RREHREEENERED

Excess of  Allowance
depreciation for bad and
over tax doubtful  Unrealised
Inventories depreciation debts profit Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
mERRR
HEEH
i3 BeE REEREE  KEREH it
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2012 RZE—Zf-F—H - 1,897 9,545 4,315 15,757
Credited to profit or loss FABRR 7,153 666 791 35 8,645
At 31 December 2012 RZZ—ZF+-A=1+—H 7,153 2,563 10,336 4,350 24,402
Credited to profit or loss HPNEN (7,153) 1,214 4,142 229 (1,568)
At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=F+-A=1+—H - 3,777 14,478 4,579 22,834

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR ESEEERe D T2 nNERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z—=F+-F=+—HILFE
28. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

29.

As at 31 December 2013, deductible temporary
difference on bad debt RMB1,117,000 (2012:
RMB19,858,000) is not recognised because of the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB48,782,000
(2012: RMB9,875,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses can be carried forward for 5 years from the
date it incurred. The amount of RMB838,000 (2012:
RMB1,104,000) included in unrecognised tax losses
will expire in 2016, the amount of RMB8,754,000
(2012: RMB8,771,000) included in unrecognised tax
losses will expire in 2017, and the other amount of
RMB39,190,000 (2012: nil) will expire in 2018.

28. \BREMIEA (4)

R R BE T8 OB R 2K &9 & I 2R R
MR —ZE—=F+_A=+— EI
EREMNATHNREREBEARK
1,117,000 (—ZZE— —F: AR¥
19,858,0007T ) W K FE R

W—ZE—=%+=-_A=+—8"
N B A A R R & A A
B RFERARBEBBEEHODARK
48,782,000 (ZZE——F: AE
#59,875,0007T ) ° F A K BE T8 B K
A S F ROR - M SR TR S 1B
BRIEEHBEE HIEFIBR
EAEHEANAF RERHRIEA
EEETRESR T —/NF 55
K458 A K#838,000T (& ——=
F: ARE1,104,0007T) ° ﬂiﬁﬁm
MEEBBRETBREEN - —tF
FENe %E/\EF%ZSJSAOOOTE(_
T—_4F: AR¥S8,771,0007T) &
BR-ZE— N\FEHHNEMESTEA
R #39,190,000c (Z & — —
) o

DEFERRED INCOME R FENT A
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—®—= —ET-_F
+=A T—A
=+—H =+—H
AR®TRT ARETET
Arising from government grant REBRNFED 43,162 28,674

Pursuant to the Notice on Initialization of 863 Program
Research and Development on Key Materials for Typical
Human Tissue and Organ Replacement and Modification
in New Material Technology Field Guokefagao [2011]
No. 231, the Group received specific government grant
amounted to RMB5,601,000 and RMB 1,916,000 for the
purpose of research and development of key materials
for typical human tissue and organ replacement
during the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2012,
respectively. An amount of RMB195,000 (2012:
RMB5,983,000) has been recognised as other income
(note 8) to match with research and development
expense incurred by the specific projects during the year
ended 31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-ZT—=F+-F=+—HILFE

29. DEFERRED INCOME (continued)

Pursuant to the Notice on the Investment Projects
of Industrial and Technology Development for the
Year 2012 Fagaibanchanye [2012] No. 1642 issued
by the Ministry of Science and Technology of PRC,
Weigao Blood received specific government grant
RMB14,260,000 for the purpose of purchasing
production equipment during the year ended 31
December 2012. An amount of RMB1,426,000
(2012: nil) was recognised as other income during
the year ended 31 December 2013 to match with
the depreciation expense of the related production
equipment.

Pursuant to the Notice on Government Subsidiary
for First Topics of Industrial Structure Adjustment
Weigaocaiyuzhi [2012] No. 334, the Company received
specific government grant RMB14,910,000 for the
purpose of purchasing production equipment and plant
construction during the year ended 31 December 2012.
An amount of RMB1,491,000 (2012: RMB1,491,000)
was recognised as other income during the year ended
31 December 2013 to match with the depreciation
expense of the related production equipment and plant.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Second Batch Central
Government Budget Investment Plan of Strategically
Emerging Industrial Project for the Year 2013
Lufagaitouzi [2013] No. 493 issued by the Ministry
of Science and Technology of PRC, the Notice on the
Shandong Province Government Budget Investment Plan
of Construction Project for the Year 2013 Lufagaitouzi
[2013] No. 530 issued by the Development and Reform
Committee of Shandong Province, and the Notice on
the District Government Budget Investment Plan of
Strategically Emerging Industrial Project for the Year
2013 Weigaocaiyuzhi [2013] No. 554, Weigao Blood
received specific government grant RMB17,600,000 for
the purpose of purchasing production equipment and
plant during the year ended 31 December 2013. The
entire amount has been included in deferred income
and will be released to profit or loss over the useful life
of the related production equipment and plant.

29.EEUY A (&)

REFBEBEFMIELNEHE—
T FITERHEMBERHKE
TH B &8 &0 38 2 B % (2012]1642
WoEREmMBEREBEE_ZT——F
+ A=+t BIFEHRRE
TEXBURBRETRNMEEA
R #14,260,0000° & 5 AR K
1,426,000t (ZE——F : E)R
HE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—H1t
FEEERAEHEMWA  UREEE
AEESRENITER

REEBH IXEERAEE —RE
B BX AT #8 BE RO @ A0 B S BE TR 38
[2012]334% AR ARIREE T
——F+-_A=+—BILFEMREK
BEEREBELABEZIWERE T
F @ Bh A R #14,910,0007T > & %8
AR #1,491,0007 (=& — = ir
AR #1,491,000)7T) REE
—=F+=ZA=1+— Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw
BEMBAUREEBEEERE
MEERFTERS -

1R 4% A B L 22 i 2 B L A9 5 R
RS EREE T ——FFE -
HARBERRENENBHNESR
& & [2013]4935% ~ 1L R A %= A
NELZESHHNMNEBFREREL =
T-—FIIREBFEERNKET
A AN B B % & [2013]53058 &
EHEBMETEEXIREE T —=
Fip BT FEE RN R E T EIA B
B = B8 35(2013]554%8 - B = M
BRBE—_ZE—=%Ft+_A=1+—
AIFFEMEBEERELEER
B4 E BT # By A R 17,600,000
TR & BE T ABRLEW AL
RNEBEERELRENAFAF
BB -
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Pursuant to the Notice on the Budget for First Topics
of National High-tech Research Development Plan
for the Year 2011 Guokefacai [2011] No. 129 issued
by the Ministry of Science and Technology of PRC,
the Company received specific government grant
RMB6,650,000 for the purpose of research and
development of glucose check and insulin injection
micro system during the year ended 31 December
2011. An amount of RMB5,850,000 was recognised as
other income in the prior years to match with research
and development expense incurred in the specific
projects. The remaining amount of RMB800,000 will
be recognised as other income until research and
development expense incurs in the future.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

29. DEFERRED INCOME (continued) 29.EFEWL A (&)

REFEBERMTHRELNERA
—E-—FRRERMHARER
EE—REBEEEENBMNEE
ZEEI[2011]1295% AR A RN E 2
T E——F+__A=Z+—HIHF
ERETHENRRERES X
BT A R & W ER A TE BT i B
AR #6,650,0000° ¢ %8 AR K
5,850,000t N IBEFERER AEAM
WA ABE&FFEIE B T £ MH
ERY -2 T 25 ARM-800,0007T
BHEZAEMBABEZWER IR
RREEAILE-

Notes: Non-listed shares and H shares are all ordinary shares in the
share capital of the Company. However, H shares may only be
subscribed for by, and traded in currencies other than RMB
between, legal or natural persons of Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region, Taiwan or any country other than
the PRC. Non-listed shares must be subscribed for and traded in
RMB. All dividends in respect of H Shares are to be paid by the
company in Hong Kong dollars whereas all dividends in respect
of Non-listed shares are to be paid by the Company in RMB.
The Non-listed shares and the H shares rank pari passu with
each other in all other respects and in particular, rank equally
for all dividends or distributions declared, paid or made.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30 ig&

Nominal  Number of Total

value of  Non-listed  Number of number
each share shares H shares of shares Value
RMB (Note) (Note) RMB'000

B8R FLIFRG
BiVEE Bi®E HE#®E Bin#s RE
ARE (BtsE) (Firs) ARBF
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 R-F-—F-A-H"
and 31 December 2013 “E-ZF+tZF=t-Bk

“Z-ZF+-A=+-H 2,592,640,000 1,883,732,324 4,476,372,324 447,637

fisE: ARBBRATZIF LT MHEK
BREBR AT HRERHES
7 REDRPIFRITTHR R - &k
FEMSIMEMBIR 2ZAAKBAA
IAREAIIMNEERBRERS
ZHEEE - FLTRMOHDUBANAR
WREBLEE - ARRIFHEORR 2
AT R BRI AE TT S - A 2 A
#IE BT IR N 2 BT B B 15 A
ARSI » I LMD R HAR Rt
REAEEM T EAZ AR EMA
FRZHABEEE IR XN SEH
ZEBHDIRTEZEE REFH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013 EHZ =%

31. LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. H &

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases
during the period

ARe B RAR M et
—=Ft+t-A=t—HLFE
*REESKEN

RAMERELZHEO AR HIE
He:

2013 2012

RMB’'000 RMB'000

—E—= —E-—F

ARBTFRE AREKTET

Properties S 9,593 10,234
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had RZE—=FRk=F—Z-F+=H

the following future minimum payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

=t+—B AKEEREFATIUEL
R ORISR RGN NS

B R

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

RMB’'000 RMB'000

—Eg—-= —E-CF

+=A T=-A

=+—H =+—H

ARBTFRE ARKTET

Within one year R—FR 6,600 8,681
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE—_EFHEF

(BREEMF) 2,626 3,550

9,226 12,231

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by REMARIBEANEERD RAY

the Group for its branch office premises, staff quarters
and warehouses. Leases are mainly negotiated for a
period ranging from two to five years and all rentals are
fixed.

¥ BTHEARHAXNNES.
MOEBRENE - FERFME
E-mMAAESEEETE -

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ILREaSEER =5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z—=F+-F=+—HILFE
31. LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 31. KR (&)
The Group as lessor EEEESBHEAA
Property rental income earned during the year was RERN PRI EMES BAL
approximately RMB1,753,000 (2012: RMB2,573,000). B AR®1,753,000 (= &F— =
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had F: AR®2,573,00000) cRI®EH
contracted with tenants for following future minimum R AEERTIRKRKERR
lease payments. A PRI A -
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB'000 RMB’000
—®—= —EB-CfF
+=A +=—A
=+—-8 =+-F
ARBTRE ARETT
Within one year R—FR 922 1,001
Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable KREHOREREAEBRRKREME
by the Group from the investment properties. Leases are FrrEEl e - HALEER M
negotiated and rentals are fixed for one year. ER—FAEETE -
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EF &R
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had RZE—=FR_T—Z_F+=A

commitments which were contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial statements:

=t—H AKEREAMBEER
RHEAE AT QB RBEEE ASE

31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—=—= —E——F
+=A +=HA
=+—H =+—H
AR®BTRE AREBTT
Acquisition of property, WEEMZE B = K& E
plant and equipment 656,312 643,721
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HE—T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

The Group had the following related party
transactions during the two years ended 31
December 2013 and ended 31 December 2012:

33.RAEBEALRS

(a)

REBEEZE-_ZE—=ZF+=A
=t+—BEHE-_ZT—_F
T+ A=+—HIEMEFEE
N AEEA THEEALTR
5

2013 2012

RMB'000 RMB'000

—E—Z=§ —T——F

ARBTFRE ARKTET

Sales to a fellow subsidiary HETRRWE QR 14,457 11,996

Sales to an associate HE TR E QA - 124,904
Sales to a subsidiary of a HEFARRBRES

shareholder of the Company oy 39,233 47,512
Purchases from fellow EIEEY N YNGIERS -

subsidiaries 92,386 80,167

Purchases from a joint venture  [A1—fE & & A A EREE 105,108 39,175

Rental payments to ultimate MELIERABZNES

holding company 2,100 2,100
Construction service from fellow H R XK & A 71 5

subsidiaries BERRH 3,100 4,421

Details of amounts due from/to related parties are
set out in notes 23 and 26.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members

(b)

FEU M REE A T RIBBR S
B HTRE23 K26 ©

FEEEARHRM

RER EERTEEERED

of key management during the year was as Hp EMEHM T :
follows:
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB’000
—g—= —T—_F
ARBTRE ARBTT
Short-term employee benefits EEEBSEA 8,137 8,420
Post-employment benefits BB 1218 A 70 89
8,207 8,509

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR EsEEE

EENT2ITBRAENHM
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The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. All Hong Kong
employees joining the Group are required to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of mainland.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 18% of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by
the Group are disclosed in note 11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 34. iRFigFIst )

AEER-_ZZETF+_A2ER
BERBIERTE S F BRI R
BEIEATEREE - ZFAEZE
ENASAAEEZES BEAE
BeEESRTAB -MEMBEAS
ErERBREHASARHIELE

EataEle

AEBzHENBERARZEEDR
REEBT &2 2 Bl E IR R IRAE F
AElZRB -ZEMBRARARS
B KA 218 % [A) AR K 1 i) 5t &1 4 5K
ERENABEER ANEELERNK
BN E 2 -—BEERELEEZ

Ko

REBB L Far 8 B R B H 4
PP NI B 5R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #EZ-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

35. F T EEMBLFFTE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at RZE—=FK=-FT——-F+=H
31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows: =+ —HB - ARAREEMB LA
FHIEMT
Place of Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest and
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2013 2012 2013 2012
BRITES/
HELFEE EE M 0 B EREF FARERLARFARNGANRRR FTERH
(E&)% (F#&) %
8- -“Z--% ZB-ZF -—T-_F
Weihai Jierui Medical Products PRC RMB32,000,000 100 100 - - Manufacturing of medical
Company Limited PVC granules, plastic
(BE2RERERERAR) packing bags and carton
boxes
BERRERRnERAT HhE AR #32,000,0007C BEBAPVCRR
BHBRRRAE
Weihai Weigao Blood Purification PRC RMB60,000,000 70 70 - - Manufacturing of medical
Products Company Limited blood purification
(BERRLRH BRERAR) treatments and related
consumables
REREMRFHRERLA PE AR 160,000,000 HEMRFLRER
RBEFEM
Weihai Weigo Group Mould PRC RMB8,000,000 90 90 10 10 Manufacturing of moulds
Company Limited
(HEREEERAFERAR)
BERREERAARAA hE AR H8,000,0007C SERA
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic PRC RMB116,000,000 75 75 25 25 Manufacturing of
Device Company Limited orthopaedic medical
(URFEERERMEBRAR) device products
WRAREMIHERAR e AR 116,000,000 RERMERREER
T
Sichuan Jierui Weigao Medical PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 - - Trading of medical products
Device Company Limited
(mIZhEmBRamERAR)
MNRREREREHARARA hE AR 2,000,007 BEREBEM

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IWEREmEEER e TEMKMD AR DA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

35. F R EEMBLFFTE

(#&)

Place of Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest and
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2013 2012 2013 2012
BRITES/
HELREE 1 3t B gEfEs FERREELARFAFDKENRFE TERE
(E#&)% (M%&) %
8-z —“T--% ZB-ZF “T-_F

Shandong Weigao New Life Medical ~ PRC RMB20,000,000 50 100 50 - Manufacturing of medical

Device Company Limited products
(LREBHEBREMERAR)
IWRERHERBESHERAA HE AR %20,000,0007C HEBRER
Shandong Weigao Automatic PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100 100 Manufacturing of industrial

Equipment Company Limited automatic equipment and
(LEBEEEBREBRAR) parts
WREAGESDCREERAA HE AE#5,000,0007 LETXaDCRERES
Shandong Weigao Group Logistic PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 - - Provision of logistics and

Company Limited storage services
(WREREENRERAR)
IWREREENRERAA HE AR 20,000,0007C REMEREFRE
Shandong Weigao Medical Holding PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 70 70 Manufacturing of medical

Company Limited products
(WRBEEREERERAR)
WRARERZRERAR e AR #20,000,0007T NEBRER
Beijing Weigao Yahua Artificial Joints ~ PRC RMB35,000,000 - - 100 100 Research, services and sales

Development Company of medical devices
(tREBREATBESRE

BRAR)
EREREEA T B HE AR 35,000,0007C BERENRE

s GEYS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VN

ARe B RAR M et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #EZ-FT—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE

35. F R EEMBLFFTE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(#&)

Place of Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest and
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2013 2012 2013 2012
BRITES/
HELRRE 1 3t B gEMEs FEREELARFAFDKENRFE TERE
(E#&)% (M%&) %
8-z —“T--% ZB-ZF "T-_F
Changzhou Jianli Bangde Medical PRC RMB30,000,000 - - 100 100 Manufacturing of
Devices Co Ltd orthopaedic devices,
(BMENAEERRMERAR) implantation materials
and artificial organs
EMENPEEESRERAR HE AR¥30,000,0007 HESRGE BEMER
ANERE
Fuzhou Fanshun Medical Device PRC RMB500,000 95 95 - - Wholesale, sales and
Technology Company Limited purchases of disposable
(BINIBRZER B RAR) sterile medical devices
RINBE RS MR M ARAF HhE AR 500,000 HEERRBEREN
B HEREE
Weigao International Medical Hong Kong ~ HKD1,000,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
Co., Ltd.
(BREREEERDA)
BRERERERLF BE 1,000,000 70 RERR
Wego Medical Holdings Limited Hong Kong ~ HKD1,000,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
(RBBEERERAR)
BRERERERAF Bk 1,000,000 7T REER
Wellford Capital Limited British Virgin -~ USD50,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Islands
KBRS 50,000%7T REER
Weihai Weigao Blood PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 70 70 General medicine, clinical
Purification Center laboratory, and hemo-
(RSEEMRFLRL) dialysis
BB B & MAFCH b HE AR H5,000,0007 —REZ BRERR

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED L3R Eim & B %

MRE

SAFHAERNERAF

171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

35. F R EEMBLFFTE

(#&)

Place of Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest and
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2013 2012 2013 2012
BRITES/
HELREE 1 3t B gEfEs FERREELARFAFDKENRFE TERE
(E#&)% (M%&) %
8-z —“T--% ZB-ZF “T-_F
Rongcheng Weigao Blood PRC RMB2,000,000 - - 70 70 General medicine, clinical
Purification Center laboratory, and hemo-
(BRESMBRF R dialysis
KEERDRF DL HE AR ¥2,000,0007 —REE BRERR
mRER
Wengdeng Weigao Blood PRC RMB3,000,000 - - 70 70 General medicine, clinical
Purification Center laboratory, and hemo-
(EFHENRFEHRDL) dialysis
NEHRDRE RO HE AR 3,000,000 ~HRELE BRERR
mRER
Weihai Wegao Biotech Co.,Limited PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 70 70 Manufacturing and sales of
(RBEmERRRERAR) medical devices
BSE®EDNRERAA HE AR 10,000,0007C BERBORERNE
Weigao Medical (Europe) Co.,Limited  British USD945,200 100 100 - - Imports and exports
(BEEE (BN BERAR) business
FmEE (BN ERAR figei 945,200 7t EROER
Weigao Medical Research (Germany) ~ Germany Euro250,000 100 100 - - Manufacturing, research and
(BRBEREERAERAR) sales of medical devices
BRERNERAERAF [ 250,0008% 7T BEREHRE
MERHEE
Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB650,000,000 25 25 75 75 Wholesale of Type | medical
Products Marketing Co., Ltd. devices, surgical devices
(BEEE (FE) BREA and other disposable
BHBBRAR) medical products
AR (FE) BRA HE AR 650,000,000 FEERRE
BHERRAA T FigeREm—RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z—=F+-A=+—HILtFE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 35. XTI EENEBLATHT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#)

(continued)

Place of Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest and
Name of subsidiaries registration registered capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
% (direct) % (indirect)
2013 2012 2013 2012
BRITES/
HELRRE 1 3t B gEMEs FEREELARFAFDKENRFE TERE
(E#&)% (M%&) %

8-z —“T--% ZB-ZF "T-_F

Weigao Group (Weihai) Medical PRC RMB100,000,000 25 25 75 75 Wholesale of Type | medical
Products Material Supp\y Co., Ltd. devices, surgical devices
(BaEE (e BRLA and other disposal
MREEERAR) medical products
BREE (RS BRARA hE AR #100,000,000 FHBERE
WHEEERAR T FHEBRLE
BRERMILE
Weihai Weigao Medical PRC RMB5,000,000 80 80 20 20 Sales of medical devices,
International Trading Co., Ltd. imports and exports of
(BERERRRARESE E al ) registered products
BAREERERESERA HE AR H5,000,0007C BEEREHE
FMERMEARLD
Shanxi Weigao Medical PRC RMB3,000,000 51 - - - Medical management
Technology Co., Ltd. software development
(RERREENRERAR) and related technical
consulting services
REFREFENRERLH e AR 3,000,007 ERERUMAMER
BRI ARG
Weigao Hemodialysis Technology PRC RMB200,000,000 75 - 17.5 - Manufacturing and sales of
Development Co., Ltd. hemo-dialysis equipment
(BUBE B MARB R
BRBRNA)
BB RS MARE TR e AR 200,000,000 MARERRBORERME
ERERAT T
Weigao Haisheng Medical PRC RMB 18,000,000 25 - 75 - Manufacturing and sales
Equipment Co., Ltd. of Type | medical devices
(BBREBRERREERAR) and engineering devices
BRSNS ERBARBERAT HE AR 18,000,000 *E@?%m%%%
EREHERLE
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities AT B A RN FRETEMMER
at the end of the year. 5o
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is KRBEERAE MEEBHAE
no subsidiary that has non-controlling interests which is BEATEZERER 2B
material to the Group. NG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 55 ¥k B

AN
N

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

36. COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

36. F R FZ M BIKR &

POSITION
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E—= —E——F
+=A += A
=+—H =+—H
ARBTRT ARETIT
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment M KEREE 2,252,385 1,934,480
Investment properties REYHE 153,621 163,987
Prepaid lease payments BT ERIE 300,457 286,144
Intangible assets mEEE 22,152 1,789
Investments in subsidiaries KK B AR E 717,299 558,299
Investment in an associate R—HEEERARNEE 72,314 72,314
Amounts due from a subsidiary fEUR — BT /B & Al 2 3RIE
(note) (P 5E) 1,055,592 1,054,496
Deferred tax asset EEIBEE 14,779 11,150
Other receivables — receivable Hfth e W sk IE — B R
after one year —F &Y E - 1,684
4,588,599 4,084,343
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 335,912 366,050
Trade and other receivables JE W E 5 N E b & U5k 1,946,199 1,268,292
Amount due from subsidiaries JrE W B /B8 X B FIR 99,608 18,082
Pledged bank deposits EHEBERITER 143,458 87,543
Bank balances and cash IRITHE R MR 304,491 301,654
2,829,668 2,041,621
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables JERT B 5 I B Ath JE - 5K 1,116,700 1,004,564
Amount due to subsidiaries JE 1B /BB A B B IE 872,788 275,529
Borrowings — repayable WITER—EAR
within one year —FRNEER 100,000 -
Tax payable JE 718 14,753 32,749
2,104,241 1,312,842
Net current assets RE)EEFE 725,427 728,779
5,314,026 4,813,122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R I A

POSITION (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 %

36. COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

22T —

ZH+-AS+—ALER

37. X RNFIZHMBEBRAR (&)

31/12/2013 31/12/2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—E2—= —E-_F
+=A +=-A
=+—8 =+—H
AR®TRT ARETT
Capital and reserves BEARNFEE
Share capital &N 447,637 447,637
Reserves & 4,853,661 4,351,266
Total equity IR 4R 5 5,301,298 4,798,903
Non-current liability ERBEE
Deferred income R AE WA 12,728 14,219
12,728 14,219
Total equity and non-current liability — #z M IERE B EHEEE 5,314,026 4,813,122

Note: The amounts due from a subsidiary amounted to
RMB1,055,592,000 (2012: RMB1,054,496,000) are unsecured,
non-trade related and interest bearing at 6% per annum. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amounts
are not expected to be recovered within the coming twelve
months from the end of the reporting period and are therefore
classified as non-current.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe B R et

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z—=F+-F=+—HILFE

36. COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION (continued)

Information about the statement of movement in
reserves of the Company at the end of the reporting

period includes:

BREAR
i’%Zéﬁﬂ’?%-

Movement in reserves

37. X RNFIZHMBEBRAR (&)

AIRBERRZHERED

EREH
Statutory
Share surplus Retained

premium  reserve fund profits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

EERR
Biz@® N RERT it
ARBTT ARBTT AR®ETF T AREFT
At 1 January 2012 —E-—-F—-f—H 2,478,544 209,123 1,403,701 4,091,368
Profit for the year REREF - - 541,909 541,909
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETERE - 14,696 (14,696) -
Dividends recognised as distribution BRADEMRE - - (282,011) (282,011)
At 31 December 2012 RZE—Z%+-A=+—-H 2,478,544 223,819 1,648,903 4,351,266
Profit for the year ZJSEJ'EAJ‘ - - 779,930 779,930
Dividends recognised as distribution BRADKHORES - - (277,535) (277,535)
At 31 December 2013 “Z-Z£+-A=t-H 2,478,544 223,819 2,151,298 4,853,661
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEmME

For the year ended 31 December
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
8EFXF+_-A=+—-HLEE
Z¥-=% _T-_—§ —T-——% C"IT-TF _TTHhF
ARBTR ARETRT AR®BTT ARETRE ARBTT

RESULTS EiR
Revenue WA 4,613,310 3,689,115 3,180,577 2,462,557 1,878,495
Profit before taxation B 35 A 7 544,154 1,126,175 3,592,506 887,884 704,960
Taxation R (156,475) (129,805) (124,472) (85,532) (71,782)
Profit for the year REE 5 F 387,679 996,370 3,468,034 802,352 633,178
Profit attributable to: TE K IEEML SR
Owners of the Company VAN/NEIE 2SN 387,984 996,486 3,462,172 799,072 633,864
Non-controlling interests b (305) (116) 5,862 3,280 (686)

387,679 996,370 3,468,034 802,352 633,178

As at 31 December

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R+=A=+—H

gz —T——-F ZT——F ZT-LTF ZITITNF
AR¥FRE ARETRT ARETT AREBTT AR®BTR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR

Total assets BEE 11,288,096 10,478,846 9,371,967 4,649,364 3,951,795
Total liabilities BAE (2,225,164) (1,558,431) (1,160,438)  (1,015,491)  (1,008,929)
Non-controlling interests R (22,587) (9,422) (9,538) (7,463) (3,183)

9,040,345 8,910,993 8,201,991 3,626,410 2,939,683

=z
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NOTICE OF THE AGM
BERBFAE®BE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general
meeting (the "AGM") of the shareholders of Shandong
Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited* ( L5 &
SEEERSS TEMmKRMBRAQG) (the "Company”)
will be held at 5th Floor, 18 Xing Shan Road, Weihai Torch
Hi-Tech Science Park, Shandong, the PRC at 9:00 a.m. on
Friday, 30 May 2014 for the purpose of considering and,
if thought fit, passing the following ordinary and special
resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1.  To consider and approve the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group (including the
Company and its subsidiaries) for the year ended 31
December 2013;

2. To consider and approve the report of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) for the year
ended 31 December 2013;

3. To consider and approve the report of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013;

4. To declare a final dividend of RMB0.031 per share of
RMBO.1 each in the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013;

5. To consider and approve the proposal for the re-
appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
auditor of the Company for the year ending 31
December 2014, and to authorise the Board to
determine his remuneration;

6. To consider and authorise the Board to approve the
remuneration of the directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company for the year ending 31
December 2014;

7. To consider and approve the re-appointment of
Mr. Zhang Hua Wei as an executive director of the

Company;

8. To consider and approve the re-appointment of Mr.
Wang Yi as an executive director of the Company;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

To consider and approve the re-appointment of
Mr. Chen Xue Li as a non-executive director of the
Company;

To consider and approve the re-appointment of Ms.
Zhou Shu Hua as a non-executive director of the
Company;

To consider and approve the re-appointment of Mr. Li
Jia Miao as an independent director of the Company;

To consider and approve the re-appointment of Mrs. Bi
Dong Mei as supervisor of the Company;

To consider and approve the re-appointment of Mrs.
Chen Xiao Yun as supervisor of the Company; and

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

14.

To consider and approve, subject to fulfillment of all
relevant conditions and/or all necessary approvals
and/or consents from the relevant PRC authorities
and bodies being obtained and/or the procedures as
required under the laws and regulations of the PRC
being completed the amendments to the Articles of
Association of the Company.

From

“Address of the Company: No. 312 Shi Chang Road,
Weihai, Shandong, the PRC.

Post Code: 264209

Telephone No.: 0631-562-2517

Facsimile No.: 0631-562-0555"

To

“Address of the Company: No. 18 Xing Shan Road,
Weihai Torch Hi-Tech Science Park, Shandong, the PRC.
Post Code: 264210

Telephone No.: 0631-562-2517

Facsimile No.: 0631-562-0555"
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NOTICE OF THE AGM
BERBFAE®BE

15. To consider and approve the general mandate to be
granted to the Board to issue new shares.

“"THAT:

a)

subject to paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) below, the
exercise by the Board during the Relevant Period
(as herein after defined in paragraph (f)) of all the
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with non-listed Shares and/or H Shares severally or
jointly be and is hereby approved,

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the Board the Relevant Period to make or grant
offers, agreement and options which would or
might require the exercise of such powers to
allot and issue non-listed Shares and/or H Shares
during the Relevant Period or after the end of the
Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of non-listed
Shares allotted and issued or agreed to be allotted
and issued (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the board of directors pursuant
to paragraphs (a) and (b) above, otherwise than
pursuant to (i) Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined
in paragraph (f)); (ii) upon the exercise of rights
of conversion under the terms of any securities
which are convertible into Shares; (iii) upon the
exercise of rights of subscription under the terms
of any warrants issued by the Company; or (iv) any
scrip dividend plan or other similar arrangement
in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
Shares allotted pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, shall not exceed 20%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the non-
listed Shares in issue on the date of passing this
resolution;
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the aggregate nominal amount of H Shares
allotted and issued or agreed to be allotted
and issued (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the board of directors pursuant
to paragraphs (a) and (b) above, otherwise than
pursuant to (i) Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined
in paragraph (f)); (i) upon the exercise of rights
of conversion under the terms of any securities
which are convertible into Shares; (iii) upon the
exercise of rights of subscription under the terms
of any warrants issued by the Company; or (iv) any
scrip dividend plan or other similar arrangement
in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
Shares allotted pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association, shall not exceed 20% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the H Shares in issue
on the date of passing this resolution;

the approval referred to in paragraph (a) above
is conditional upon the Company obtaining
the approval from China Securities Regulatory
Commission;

for the purpose of this resolution;

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of the passing of this special resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:

i) the conclusion of next annual general
meeting of the Company after the passing of
this resolution;

i)  the expiration of the period within the
twelve month period after the passing of this
resolution; or

iii) the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this resolution by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in a general meeting.
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NOTICE OF THE AGM
BERBFAE®BE

“Right Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
fixed period to holders of shares on the register of
members of the Company and (where appropriate)
other holders of the equity securities of the
Company that are entitled to accept such offer
on a fixed record date in proportion to their then
holdings of such shares or such equity securities
(subject to such exclusion or other arrangements
as the directors of the Company may deem
necessary of expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements
of, any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in relevant jurisdiction); and

authorise the Board to, at its discretion, make any
amendment of the Articles of Association of the
Company where necessary, so as to increase the
registered capital of the Company, and to reflect
the new capital structure upon the granting of
approval for the allotment or issue of the shares in
the Company pursuant to paragraph (a) above.”

Yours faithfully,

By order of the Board

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer
Company Limited*

Chen Xue Li

Chairman

Weihai, Shandong
9 April 2014

Registered Office:

18 Xingshan Road,

Weihai Torch Hi-Tech Science Park
Shandong

The PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong:
801, Chinachem Century Tower

178 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Notes:

(iii)

(iv)

A Shareholder who has the right to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint one proxy (or more) in writing to attend the AGM
and vote on his behalf in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association. The proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.
Enclosed herewith a form of proxy for use in the general meeting.
Any Shareholder who wishes to appoint a proxy should first review
the form of proxy for use in the AGM. For any Shareholder who has
appointed more than one proxies, such proxies shall only vote on poll.
In the case of joint registered holders, the proxy form may be signed
by any joint registered holder. In the case that more than one of such
joint registered holders are present at any meeting personally or by
proxy, then one such joint registered holders so present whose name
stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of
such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

All Shareholders shall appoint its proxy in writing. To be valid, a
form of proxy together with a power of attorney or other authority,
if any, under which it is signed or certified by a notary or an official
copy of that power of attorney or authority, must be delivered at the
Company’s H Share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (in
respect of the holder of H Shares) and the Company’s principal place
of business at 18 Xing Shan Road, Weihai Torch Hi-Tech Science Park,
Shandong, PRC (in respect of the holder of the Non-listed Shares) not
less than 24 hours before the time appointed for holding the AGM or
24 hours before the time designated for voting.

Shareholders and their proxies attending the AGM shall produce their
proof of identification.

For the purpose of determining the identity of shareholders who
are entitled to attend at the meeting, the register of members will
be closed from 30 April 2014 to 30 May 2014, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for attending at the meeting, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
H Share Registrars at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 29 April 2013.

For the purpose of determining the identity of shareholders who are
entitled to receive final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2013, the register of members will be closed from 7 June 2014 to
11 June 2014, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for entitlement of final
dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company's H Share Registrars at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 6 June 2014.
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NOTICE OF THE AGM
BERBFAE®BE

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The holders of the H Shares who intend to attend the AGM, whether
in person or by proxy, should complete and return the reply slip to the
Company’s H Share registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no
later than Friday, 9 May 2014 by hand, by post, by telegraph or by fax
to (852) 2528 3158.

The holders of the Non-listed Shares who intend to attend the AGM,
whether in person or by proxy, should complete and return the reply
slip to the Company’s registered address at 18 Xing Shan Road,
Weihai Torch Hi-Tech Science Park, Shandong, PRC no later than
9 May 2014 by hand, by post, by telegraph or by fax to (86) 631
5622419.

The AGM is expected not to exceed half a day, and all shareholders
and proxies shall be responsible for their own travelling and
accommodation expenses.

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Company’s Articles of Association all
votes of the Shareholders at the general meetings must be taken by
poll.

Any enquiries about this notice and the AGM shall be sent for the
attention to Ms. Xing Jingran at 18 Xing Shan Road, Weihai Torch
Hi-Tech Science Park, Shandong, PRC (Tel. (86) 631 5622418) or Ms.
Phillis Wong at 801, Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (Tel: (852) 28381490).
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